Address A-M

Listed Buildings in Worthing : Address A-M

Address Name
Alfred Place -
(21 and 23)

Alfred Place -
(25 and 27)

INCLUDING SECTIONS OF
RAILINGS ALONG THE
FRONT

Ambrose Place
(1to 14
consec.)

Description Grade Listing
Date

21-

MAY -

1976

ALFRED PLACE 1. 5406 Il
(North Side) Nos 21 and 23 TQ
1502 NW 5/138 1l GV 2. Early
C19. A pair of terrace houses.

2 storeys. Stucco-fronted.
Steep slate roof. Single
window, with sashes in No 23
but converted to casements in
No 25. Plain straight hoods
over ground and 1st floor
windows of No 23. Right hand
doorways. round-headed with
semi-circular lights, and
shallow porch in form of ogee
arch. Nos 21 to 27 (odd) form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1528902617

ALFRED PLACE 1. 5406 I
(North Side) Nos 25 and 27 TQ
1502 NW 5/139 Il GV 2. Early
C19. A pair of terrace cottages,
similar to Nos 21 and 23 but
smaller. No 27 being the end of
the row. 2 storeys and attic.
Stucco-fronted. Steep slate roof
with decorative tile cresting.
One sash window each. A
dormer each but abutting to
form one unit (of later date).
Right-hand doors with shallow
porches in form of ogee arches.
Nos 21 to 27 (odd) form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1529802619

AMBROSE PLACE 1. 5406 Il 11-
(North Side) Nos 1 to 14 OCT-
(consec.) including sections of 1949
railings along the front TQ 1402

NE 3/23 11.10.49. 1l GV 2.

Between 1814 and 1824. Built

by Ambrose Cartright. 3 storeys

and basement, with area. 2

windows each. Stuccoed.

Cornice and parapet. Wooden

balconies with canopy on 1st

floor, the balconies supported

by 4 slender columns to each

house. Nos 6, 12 and 13 retain

their original trellised wooden

porches which fill the space

between the 2 right hand

columns in these houses. The

21-
MAY -
1976



Ambrose Place
(15)

other doorways which have not
been altered have fluted frames
and very narrow rectangular
fanlights. Apart from the
porches, only Nos 1, 2, 6, 7
and 10 to 14 have their facades
more or less as originally built.
Nos 3, 5 and 9 have had later
iron balconies substituted for
the wooden ones. No 4 has
had a bay on the 2nd floor and
an extra storey added. No 5
lacks a storey, and No 8 has
had a later bay added on
ground and 1st floor and also a
porch. No 14 is quite different
from the other houses, being
bow fronted with an iron
hooded balcony, Doric pilasters
above this, arcading to 2nd
floor windows, an attic storey
with dormer windows behind
the parapet, and a porch with
Doric columns, but the house is
original and not altered. Most of
the houses have cast iron
railings along the pavement
and to either side of the front
space and basement areas. All
have finials of javelin form, but
some are of lighter scale than
others. No 1 has light railings
along the east only (with a
fluted terminal post); No 4
heavy railings to the front and
west; No 5 has railings
decorated with anthemions etc,
to the steps; Nos 5 and 8 have
heavy railings to the front; No 8
to the right also; Nos 9 and 10
have light railings to the front
and west, and fluted posts at
the angles and entrances; No
12 has heavy railings to east
and west and fluted angle and
entrance posts; No 14 has
heavy railings to the front, east
(with gap) and west and 4 piers
with elliptical caps. Nos 1 to 15
form a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1477002823

AMBROSE PLACE 1. 5406
(North Side) TQ 1402 W 3/125
No 15 Il GV 2. A pair of houses
forming the west end of the
terrace. 3 storeys. Stucco-
fronted. Projecting eaves on
paired enriched brackets. Two

21-
MAY -
1976



Ann Street

BUILDING AT REAR OF
NUMBER 35 WARWICK
STREET

rectangular bays with 3
windows, with a single window
between, all sashes with
glazing bars. 2nd and 3rd floor
windows are of equal size.
Ground floor single window is
blind. Door on right of 6
moulded panels within a porch
formed of an entablature with
hearty dentilled cornice
supported by slender pilasters.
The steps leading to this have
decorative iron railings. There
is also a short section of
railings along the east part of
the frontage. This item is
included mainly for group
value. Nos 1 to 15 form a
group. In the descriptive notes
for the above entry, the first
sentence should be amended
to read: 'Building forming the
west end of the terrace.' ---------
---------------------- AMBROSE
PLACE 1. 5406 (North Side)
No 15 TQ 1402 NE 3/125 1l GV
2. A pair of houses forming the
west end of the terrace. 3
storeys. Stucco-fronted.
Projecting eaves on paired
enriched brackets. Two
rectangular bays with 3
windows, with a single window
between, all sashes with
glazing bars. 2nd and 3rd floor
windows are of equal size.
Ground floor single window is
blind. Door on right of 6
moulded panels within a porch
formed of an entablature with
heavy, dentilled cornice
supported by slender pilasters.
The steps leading to this have
decorative iron railings. There
is also a short section of
railings along the east part of
the frontage. This item is
included mainly for group. Nos
1 to 15 form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1472502810

ANN STREET 1. 5406 (South Il 21-
Side) TQ 1502 SW 5/36 Nos 12 MAY -
and 14 The above entry shall 1976

be amended to read: ANN
STREET (South Side) Building
at rear of No 35 Warwick Street
(formerly Nos 12 and 14 Ann



Ann Street (8)

Ardsheal Road
(19)

Arundel Road

INCLUDING GARDEN
WALL TO EAST

12 CASTLE GORING

Street) ANN STREET 1. 5406
(South Side) Nos 12 and 14 TQ
1502 NW 5/36 1l 2. Early C19.
2 storeys. 3 windows.
Stuccoed. Wide pilasters and
arcading over 1st floor
windows. 2 doors together with
large fanlight over both. Listing
NGR: TQ1504202659

ANN STREET 1. 5406 (South Il 21-
Side) No 8 TQ 1502 NW 5/137 MAY -
Il 2. Early C19. 3 storeys. One 1976

sash window, with glazing bars.
Good quality brickwork of grey
headers with red dressings.
Recessed left-hand doorway,
with 6-panel door. Listing NGR:

TQ1503202660

ARDSHEAL ROAD 1. 5406 Il 21-
(South Side) Broadwater No MAY-
19, including garden wall to 1976

east TQ 1404 16/202 1 2. C18.
Symmetrical detached cottage
abutting the road at right-
angles. 2 storeys. Painted
brick. Modillion eaves cornice.
Steep renewed tile roof. Gable
chimneys. East front: 2 sash
windows, of equal size on the 2
floors but the lower with
cambered heads. Low cobble
wall to front garden. Listing
NGR: TQ1439304564

In the entry for ARUNDEL Il 21-
ROAD TQ 10 NW (South Side) MAY-
23/216 No 12 (The Cottage) 1976

GV Il the address shall be
amended to read ARUNDEL
ROAD (South Side) No 12
Castle Goring Cottages ----------
-------------------------- ARUNDEL
ROAD 1. 5406 (South Side) No
12 (The Cottage) TQ 10 NW
23/216 1l GV 2. Probably late
C18. A long narrow 2-storey
range with steep tiled roof.
Rendered. Either side of lean-
to porch on slender wooden
posts (over doorway with light
above) are a 3-light casement
window on the upper storey
and a 6-light casement bay
window on the lower storey (the
latter with lattice glazing bars).
There is also a 2-light
casement window between the
porch and the left-hand bay. To
the right, and beyond the ridge



Arundel Road

CASTLE GORING

chimney, a section perhaps
added later with a single-light
casement on each floor. Nos 8,
9, 10, 12 and 13 form a group,
of which Nos 8, 9, and 10 are
of local interest only. Listing
NGR: TQ1054805623

ARUNDEL ROAD 1. 5406 I 11-
(South Side) Castle Goring TQ OCT-
10 NW 23/71 11.10.49. 1 2. 1949

Built by Shelley's grandfather,
Sir Bysshe Shelley, about
1797-8. The south front is in
Palladian style, the north front
Gothic, though both were built
at the same date. 3 storeys. 5
windows to each front and
flanking pavilion on each side.
The Palladian front was
designed by Biagio Rebecca
and is said to be a copy of a
villa near Rome. It is of yellow
brick. The centre portion of 3
windows projects slightly with
stuccoed lonic pilasters and
entablature and pediment with
the Shelley arms in tympanum.
Sculptured Coade stone panels
dated 1797 and 1798 between
Ist and 2nd floor windows. The
rest of the front has a cornice
continued from the centre
portion of the house and
parapet above, and 1st floor
windows in arcading with
arched panels over and
balustrading beneath. On
ground floor portico with 6
fluted Doric columns in front of
3 central windows with 2 flights
of curved staircase on either
side with iron hand rail. Above
balcony with similar iron railing
in front of the piano nobile.
Large pavilion or wing at east
and west ends, the former
containing the kitchen and dairy
and communicating with the
house, the latter containing the
original stables and only joined
to the house by a connecting
wall with a door through it.
These pavilions have curved
ends with stuccoed lonic
columns, entablature and
pseudo-castellated parapet.
The Gothic front is of flint and
sandstone. Centre and ends



Arundel Road

Arundel Road

Arundel Road

THE COTTAGE 1 CASTLE
GORING MEWS

WALLED GARDEN AT
CASTLE GORING

STANHOPE LODGE AND
STANHOPE STORE

project slightly. Square tower in
centre, castellated parapet at
ends. Large recessed porch in
centre. This front of the
pavilions is also gothicised. The
stables have 2 round turrets,
the kitchen a large
perpendicular style window.
Curved wooden staircase
inside, lit by glass dome in
centre of the house which is not
visible from either front outside.
Listing NGR: TQ1024205654

In the entry for ARUNDEL Il 21-
ROAD TQ 10 NW (South Side) MAY -
23/70 No 13 GV Il the address 1976

shall be amended to read
ARUNDEL ROAD (South Side)
No 13 Castle Goring Cottages -
ARUNDEL ROAD 1. 5406
(South Side) No 13 TQ 10 NW
23/70 11 GV Late C18. 2
storeys. 3 windows and 1
blocked. Grey headers with red
brick dressings. Small cornice
with modillions below eaves.
Red tiled roof. Small flat hood
to door. 6-panel door. Nos 8, 9,
10, 12 and 13 form a group, of
which Nos 8, 9, and 10 are of
local interest only. Listing NGR:

TQ1050805624

TQ 10 NW WORTHING I 06-
ARUNDEL ROAD MAY -
753/23/10016 Walled Garden 1997

at Castle Goring Il Walled

garden with attached

outbuildings. Early C19.

Rectangle approximately 90 x

55 metres of red brick in

Flemish bond with back

headers. About 12 feet high

with brick pilasters at regular

intervals and stone coping. On

north side are lean-to

outbuildings in pebble with red

brick dressings and slate roof,

probably potting shed and

gardeners' bothy and on the

other side of this wall facing

south late C19 glasshouses.

The north wall has flues,

probably for heating. Listing

NGR: TQ1046205239

TQ 10 NE WORTHING I 20-
ARUNDEL ROAD 23/10021 SEP-
Stanhope Lodge And Stanhope 1984



Arundel Road

COACH AND HORSES
PUBLIC HOUSE

Store 20.9.84 1| STANHOPE
LODGE WAS FIRST LISTED
ON 20 SEPTEMBER 1984
AND WAS THEN INCLUDED
IN THE TWENTY THIRD LIST
FOR THE DISTRICT OF ARUN
IN THE PARISH OF
CLAPHAM. House and
outbuilding, probably originally
a stable, now in separate
ownership. Stanhope Lodge
has an C18 north west wing
and early C19 south east wing.
Stanhope Store is late C18 or
early C19. Stanhope Lodge is
of red brick in English bond to
north west wing and Flemish
bond with blue brick headers to
south east with tiled roof and
end brick chimneystacks. Two
storeys with 3 horizontally
sliding casements to north west
with cambered head linings to
ground floor, central doorway in
moulded architrave surround
with projecting cornice on
console brackets and double
doors to right hand ground floor
probably originally housing
carriage. C19 clockface to
extreme right. South east wing
is set back addition of one bay
with sash window with horns
and C20 garage doors. Rear
elevation has 5 sash windows.
Stanhope Store is a one storey
outbuilding attached to the right
of Stanhope Lodge in flint with
red brick lacing courses and
tiled roof. -------------m-mm e
---- The entry for Stanhope
Lodge, Arundel Road, Clapham
has been deleted from the
twenty third list for the District
of Arun by virtue of the twenty
ninth amendment. -----------------

--------------- Listing NGR:

TQ1101105663

TQ 10 NW WORTHING 1 28-
ARUNDEL ROAD 23/10010 MAR-
Coach and Horses Public 1996

House GV Il Public house.
Early to mid C18, refronted in
early to mid C19 with C20
addition to side. Ground floor
painted brick, first floor slate
hung. Tiled roof with ridge tiles
and end painted brick



Arundel Road

Arundel Road

Ashacre Lane

14 CASTLE GORING

THE LODGE OF CASTLE
GORING

THE OLD COTTAGE

chimneystacks. Original part
two storeys and attics in gable
end; three windows. Twelve
pane sashes and central C18
six fielded panelled door with
pedimented hood and console
brackets concealed under C20
glazed porch. Left side one
storey bar extension with
twelve pane sashes is
converted former outbuilding. C
19 gabled extension to rear and
C20 flat roofed extension to
right side. Interior has
chamfered spine beam. Listing
NGR: TQ1098605659

In the entry for ARUNDEL
ROAD TQ 10 NW (South Side)
23/217 No 14 GV Il the address
shall be amended to read -------
ARUNDEL ROAD 1. 5406
(South Side) No 14 TQ 10 NW
23/217 11 2. Probably C18. A
detached cottage of red brick
with grey headers. Steep tiled
roof with gable chimneys. 3 not
quite symmetrically-placed
casement windows, the centre
one 2-light, the others 3-light.
The ground floor windows have
cambered heads, the upper
ones timber; all have possibly
original metal frames with
leaded panes. Central doorway
within plain gabled porch. The
building is reinforced with
buttresses and several tie rods
with circular discs. Interior has
rough-hewn ceiling timbers.
Listing NGR: TQ1038805621
TQ1O0NW WORTHING
ARUNDEL ROAD TQ 10 NW
(South Side) 11/27 The Lodge
of Castle Goring. Slightly later
in date than the house and
probably built by the first
occupant of the house, Admiral
Sir George Brook Pechell, one
of the first Members of
Parliament for Brighton, about
1830. One storey. Two
windows. Faced with flints with
stuccoed quoins. Slate roof.
Casement windows latticed
panes. Gable end to each wing
with scalloped bargeboards.
ASHACRE LANE 1. 5406

21-
MAY -
1976

21-



(54)

Ashacre Lane
(79)

Ashacre Lane
(87)

WALNUT TREE COTTAGE

THE OLD HOUSE

(South Side) Durrington The
Old Cottage TQ 1205 10/173
GV Il 2. Probably late C18. 2
storeys. Flint with brick
dressings. Slate roof. Gable
chimneys. 2 widely-spaced
windows (modern casements
above; sashes of Victorian type
below). Central door. Extension
in the form of second span at
the east end. Listing NGR:
TQ1292405088

ASHACRE LANE 1. 5406
(South Side) Durrington Walnut
Tree Cottage TQ 1205 10/79
11.10.49. GV Il 2. Dated 1762.
Flints with red brick dressings
and stringcourse. Small cornice
with modillions placed
slantways below eaves. Red
tiled roof. Listing NGR:
TQ1297005057

TQ 1205 WORTHING
ASHACRE LANE 10/78
Number 54 (even) 11.10.49
The Old House GV Il House.
Probable C15 open hall, ceiled
over and chimney inserted in
early C17 when a parlour wing
was added to the east,
extensively restored circa 1911.
Timber-framed building
refronted in flint and render with
roof mainly tiled but front slope
of roof to original wing retaining
Horsham stone slabs.
Channelled brick stack to
centre of original wing, external
brick and flint stack to east of
parlour wing and probable C18
brick stack to rear range. L-
shaped plan. Two storeys, with
attics to parlour wing; 5
windows. Front has former hall
house of 3 bays to left. Three
gabled dormers and three
casement windows, all with
early C20 leaded lights.
Projecting parlour wing to right
has gable hung with plain and
fishscale tiles, 1;2;1 casements
with leaded lights and early
C20 porch on slender wooden
columns and four panelled
door. Rear elevation has circa
1911 gabled projection forming
stair turret, two storey C17 or
C18 service wing to right with

MAY -
1976

11-
OCT-
1949

11-
OCT-
1949



Bath Place (4)

Bath Place (5)

one storey offices at end. Three
leaded light casements. Interior
has crownpost roof to original
open hall with curved tiebeam,
octagonal crown post with 4
headbraces, collar beam and
rafters. The square crownpost
to the smaller bedroom has a
collar beam which is a reused
beam from the top of a
wallplate retaining the notches
of the rafters. Ground floor has
dining room with early C17
cross beams with 2 inch
chamfers with lambstongue
stops, c1911 stone fireplace
and wooden panelling. Sitting
room has open fireplace with
moulded bressumer with crane
marks and 2 salt recesses, but
the seats and arched
doorcases are early C20.
Chamfered spine beam
supported on wooden corbel. A
series of plank doors probably
assembled c1911 out of older
floorboards. Parlour wing
shows few visible signs of early
C17 origin apart from a
chamfered beam with lambs
tongue stop on the first floor.
The attic floor of this wing is
boarded over. Old sales
particulars indicate that this
property was known as Cutler's
House in 1795 and was later
subdivided into three cottages.
Later it became a farmhouse
but was restored in 1911 and
became a residence. Listing
NGR: TQ1298605094

BATH PLACE 1. 5406 (East
Side) No 4 TQ 1402 SE 4/157
I GV 2. Early C19. 3 storeys
and attic. Part of the scheme of
Nos 5 to 8. 3-light bay window
and right-hand blind window.
Modern shopfront and right-
hand door. Modillion eaves
cornice below slate roof.
Victorian balcony to let floor of
bay, with decorated iron
railings. One dormer window.
Stuccoed. Nos 4 to 8 (consec.)
form a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1489802419

BATH PLACE 1. 5406 (East
Side) No 5 TQ 1402 SE 4/13

21-
MAY -
1976

11-
OCT-



Bath Place (6
to 8 consec.)

Bedford Row

BEDFORD HALL

11.10.49. 1l GV 2. Early C19. 3 1949
storeys and attic. One bow

window of 3 lights. Stuccoed.

Cornice with modillions. One

dormer. Wooden balcony on

1st floor. Glazing bars intact.

Round-headed doorway up 6

steps. Nos 4 to 8 (consec.)

form a group. Listing NGR:

TQ1489602424

BATH PLACE 1. 5406 (East Il 21-
Side) Nos 6 to 8 (consec.) TQ MAY -
1402 SE 4/156 Il GV 2. Early 1976

C19. 3 terraced houses,
forming part of scheme with
Nos 4 and 5. 3 storeys and
attic. A 3-light bay window to
each house, alternately bowed
(ie No 7). No 7 has glazing
bars, but not original sashes.
Elsewhere Victorian sashes or
modern windows. No 8 has
added decorative tiles between
storeys of bays, and no right-
hand door as the others have.
All have modern shopfronts,
and modillion eaves cornice
below slate roofs, with one
dormer (Nos 6 and 7 with
sashes and glazing bars).
Stucco front. Nos 4 to 8
(consec.) form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1489502430

BEDFORD ROW 1. 5406 I 21-
(West Side) Bedford Hall TQ MAY -
1402 NE 3/16 TQ 1502 NW 1976

5/16 1l GV 2. Now bank
premises, originally the
Wesleyan Chapel. 1839.
Architect Charles Bide.
Stuccoed. Cornice and
pediment with circular opening
in tympanum. Windows in
frames with architraves over
and in the case of the central
one a pediment also. The 3
large windows are wider at the
bottom than at the top. The
door is placed beneath the
central window in the same
surround and the latter slopes
outwards the whole way down
as the door also is wider at the
bottom than at the top. Bedford
Hall forms a group with Nos 10
and 12 Warwick Street
(including Thieves Kitchen
premises at rear). Listing NGR:



TQ1471202632

Bedford Row - BEDFORD ROW 1. 5406 I 21-
(3to 6 (West Side) Nos 3to 6 MAY -
consec.) (consec.) TQ 1502 5W 6/14 1I 1976

GV 2. 1803-1805. 4 storeys
and semi-basement. 2
windows. White brick, No 4
stuccoed. Curved bay with
window of 3 lights on all floors.
Cornice with modillions.
Glazing bars intact. Round-
headed doorways in moulded
frames up 6 steps with
keystones over and semi-
circular fanlights. 6 panel
moulded doors. Gospel Hall,
Nos 3 to 6 (consec.) and Nos 8
to 14 (consec.) form a group
which Gospel Hall is of local
interest only. Listing NGR:

TQ1502202481
Bedford Row = BEDFORD ROW 1. 5406 I 11-
(8to 14 (West Side) Nos 8 to 14 OCT-
consec) (consec.) TQ 1502 NW 5/15 1949

11.10.49. Il GV 2. Ditto, the
bow fronts mostly stuccoed.
Nos 13 and 14 have an attic
storey with 1 dormer. Similar
doorways. But Nos 8to 11
have Doric columns and
pediment over, (this being a
curved pediment at Nos 8 and
10). Similar fanlights and doors.
No 12 has no basement.
Gospel Hall, Nos 3 to 6
(consec.) and Nos 8 to 14
(consec.) form a group which
Gospel Hall is of local interest
only. Listing NGR:

TQ1501902529
Bridge Road ACE HOUSE BRIDGE ROAD 1. 5406 (South I 21-
(1) Side) TQ 1403 17/47 Bridge MAY -
House In the above entry: 1976

Bridge House shall be
amended to read Ace House ---
BRIDGE ROAD 1. 5406 (South
Side) Bridge House TQ 1403
17/47 11 2. Circa 1840. 2
storeys. 2 windows. lonic
pilasters at the sides. Windows
in frames, those on the ground
floor having entablatures over
supported by consoles. Slate
roof with lead ridges. Porch
with fluted Doric columns.
Rectangular fanlight. Stuccoed.
Listing NGR: TQ1468003446



Brighton Road BEACH HOUSE

Brighton Road -
(205to 211
odd)

Brighton Road -
(22 and 24)

BRIGHTON ROAD 1. 5406 [*
(South Side) Beach House TQ
1502 NW 5/19 3.8.48. 1I* 2.
1820 by J B Rebecca.
Originally called Marino
Mansion. 2 storeys, attic and
basement. 3 windows.
Stuccoed. Cornice and parapet.
The central portion projects
slightly with a pediment over.
Windows in frames, the central
one with entablature over.
Porch in 3 sections with Doric
pilasters. The south front has a
curved bay of 3 windows with
parapet over and Venetian
shutters on the 1st floor. The
east front of 1 window is also
curved and has a projection on
the ground floor. There is a
later addition of 2 windows to
the west. Edward Knoblock,
Dramatist, lived here for some
years and added the "Regency"
internal decoration. Listing
NGR: TQ1544902653
BRIGHTON ROAD 1. 5406 Il
(North Side) Nos 205 to 211
(odd) TQ 1602 20/46 11.10.49.
I GV 2. A small terrace in the
style of the early C19 by S
Adshead, 1904. 3 storeys. 3
windows. Stuccoed. Balconies
of iron and wood on 1st floor
with canopies and 4 slender
columns supporting them from
ground floor. Round-headed
doorways in fluted frames. Nos
205 and 207 have mansarded
roofs. Nos 209 and 211 have a
cornice and pediment with
moulded panel and swag below
between the inner windows,
also Venetian shutters to 2nd
floor windows. This terrace is
not complete and should have
had 2 more houses to the east
of Nos 209 and 211 to balance
Nos 205 and 207. Nos 205 to
211 (odd) form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1616802807
BRIGHTON ROAD 1. 5406 Il
(South Side) Nos 22 and 24 TQ
1502 NW 5/136 1l GV 2.
Probably 1830s. A symmetrical
2-storey, stucco-fronted pair of
houses, now unevenly divided
on the ground floor between 2

03-
AUG-
1948

11-
OCT-
1949

21-
MAY -
1976



Broadwater
Road

Broadwater
Road

Broadwater
Road

ST MARYS CHURCH

SECTION OF WALL ON
NORTH SIDE OF
BROADWATER
CHURCHYARD, RUNNING
ALONG REAR OF NUMBER
2 BROADWATER STREET
EAST AND EXTENDING TO
THE NORTH WEST
CORNER OF THE
CHURCHYARD

BROADWATER MANOR
HOUSE

shops, the left-hand one
occupying about two-thirds of
the space, the right-hand one-
third. 3 sash windows with
glazing bars (the middle one
blind). Pilasters at either end,
cut short by the modern
shopfronts (and the right-hand
one a little narrower). Cornice
and parapet. Nos 22 to 26
(even) form a group of which
No 26 is local interest only.
Listing NGR: TQ1526202645

BROADWATER ROAD 1. 5406 II* 11-
(East Side) Broadwater St OCT-
Mary's Church Broadwater, 1949

(formerly listed as Broadwater
Church, (St Mary's)) TQ 1404
16/50 11.10.49. B 2. Cruciform.
Mainly Transitional-Norman,
with particularly fine arches to
Choir and Nave. Brasses in
chancel (to John Mapilton,
Rector 1424-32) and nave (to
John Corby, d 1415). Canopied
tomb in chancel to Thomas,
Lord de la Warr (d 1524) and
altar-tomb in transept to 6th
Lord de la Warr (d 1554). Wall
monument to John Wenham (d
1768) and neo-classic one to
John Daubuz (d 1831). 6 late
Gothic misericords. Jacobean
communion rail. Listing NGR:

TQ1466104399

BROADWATER ROAD 1. 5406 |l 21-
(East Side) Broadwater Section MAY -
of wall on north side of 1976

Broadwater Churchyard,
running along rear of No 2
Broadwater Street East and
extending to the north-west
corner of the churchyard TQ
1404 16/50B 1l 2. Probably C18
or earlier. Flint and brick.
Listing NGR: TQ1461404425

BROADWATER ROAD 1. 5406 I 11-
(East Side) Broadwater OCT-
Broadwater Manor House TQ 1949

1404 16/48 11.10.49. 1l 2. Early
C19. 2 storeys. 5 windows.
White brick. Stringcourse
above ground floor. The ground
floor windows have semi-
circular panels over them with
keystones. Slate roof. Stuccoed
porch probably later but
containing original 8 panel



Broadwater
Road

Broadwater
Street East
(10)

Broadwater
Street East
(19)

Broadwater
Street East
(21)

WALL TO SOUTH,EAST
AND NORTH OF ST
MARY'S CHURCHYARD

moulded door. Late C19
addition to the east, addition
and conservatory to the west.
Listing NGR: TQ1467204308

BROADWATER ROAD 1. 5406 |l 21-
(East Side) Broadwater Wall to MAY -
south, east and north of St 1976

Mary's Churchyard, Broadwater
TQ 1404 16/50A 1l 2. High flint
wall along south and east sides
of churchyard; low flint wall with
stone coping along north side.
Probably C18 and earlier.
Listing NGR: TQ1475504362

BROADWATER STREET I 21-
EAST 1. 5406 (South Side) MAY -
Broadwater No 10 TQ 1404 1976

16/236 11 GV 2. Probably end of
C18. Tiled mansard roof. Flint
with brick dressings. 2 storeys,
basement and attic. One sash
window of Victorian type above
(together with miniature window
to the right). Shop-front below
(with fascia board matching
those of Nos 4, 6 and 8),
enclosing left-hand door.
Modillion eaves cornice. Attic
window in west gable. Rear
shares ancient walling with
blocked openings of Nos 4, 6
and 8. Nos 4 to 10 (even) form
a group. Listing NGR:

TQ1463804428

BROADWATER STREET Il 21-
EAST 1. 5406 (North Side) MAY -
Broadwater No 19 TQ 1404 1976

16/205 Il GV 2. Probably C18.
2 storeys. Front rendered and
painted. East side painted flint;
West side abuts No 21. 1 sash
window with glazing bars. C19
shopfront, modernised. Nos 19
to 27 (odd), and the wall and
gatepiers to No 27 form a
group with No 2 Forest Road.
Listing NGR: TQ1466104439

BROADWATER STREET [l 21-
EAST 1. 5406 (North Side) MAY -
Broadwater No 21 TQ 1404 1976

16/51 11 GV 2. C18. 2 storeys. 3
windows. Whitewashed flints.
Red tiled roof. Casement
windows, except the lower left
one, which has been converted
to a show window. Nos 19 to
27 (odd), and the wall and



Broadwater IVY COTTAGE AND ST
Street East (23 MARYS COTTAGE
and 25)

Broadwater -
Street East (27
and 27A)

gatepiers to No 27 form a
group with No 2 Forest Road.
Listing NGR: TQ1466804444

BROADWATER STREET I 11-
EAST 1. 5406 (North Side) OCT-
Broadwater No 23 (lvy Cottage) 1949

and No 25 (St Mary's Cottage)
TQ 1404 16/52 11.10.49. 1l GV
2. C18. One roof span, in red
tiles. 2 storeys. Red brick and
grey headers alternately. One
window and 4 windows
respectively, in frames, with
glazing bars; all sashes except
the upper one to No 23 and
left-hand lower one to No 25,
which are fixed. Slate-covered
hood over the westernmost
window and door of No 25. Nos
19 to 27 (odd), and the wall and
gatepiers to No 27 form a
group with No 2 Forest Road.
Listing NGR: TQ1468604436

BROADWATER STREET I 21-
EAST 1. 5406 (North Side) MAY -
Broadwater Nos 27 and 27A 1976

TQ 1404 16/206 Il GV 2.
Probably mid C18, but with
later modifications. On the
corner of Forest Road and
abutting No 25 on the west. 2
storeys. South front:
Symmetrical. Painted brick. 3
sash windows, the middle one
narrower. The upper ones have
gauged heads and glazing
bars. The lower side ones are
set in wide projections under
flat lead roofs and have glazing
bars in upper sashes only.
Central door with 6 moulded,
fielded panels, enclosed by 3/4
Tuscan columns supporting
entablature and parapet.
Steep-pitched roof, tiled on
north side, slated on south with
decorative tile cresting. Gable
chimneys. 2-span, lower wing
at west end of rear, with steep,
tiled roofs and tall gable
chimneys. Rendered and
painted. Irregularly-placed sash
windows with glazing bars.
Single-storey lean-to extension
at east end of rear (and small
2-storeyed, flat-roofed section
between this and rear wing).
Nos 19 to 27 (odd), and the



Broadwater
Street East
(27)

Broadwater
Street East (4
to 8 even)

Broadwater
Street East (7
to 13 odd)

GARDEN WALL AND
GATEPIERS OF NUMBER
27 FROM CORNER OF
NUMBER 25 TQ
OUTBUILDING IN FOREST
ROAD

wall and gatepiers to No 27
form a group with No 2 Forest
Road. Listing NGR:

TQ1469604439

BROADWATER STREET [ 21-
EAST 1. 5406 (North Side) MAY-
Broadwater Garden wall and 1976

gatepiers of No 27 from corner
of No 25 to outbuilding in
Forest Road TQ 1404 16/207 1l
GV 2. Probably C18. Flint.
Brick gatepiers to front
entrance. Nos 19 to 27 (odd),
and the wall and gatepiers to
No 27 form a group with No 2
Forest Road. Listing NGR:

TQ1471304439

BROADWATER STREET I 21-
EAST 1. 5406 (South Side) MAY-
Broadwater Nos 4 to 8 (even) 1976

TQ 1404 16/208 1l GV 2.
Probably early C19. 2 storeys.
Painted render. Slate roofs. In
2 ranges, the left-hand lower
and set back, with one sash
window with glazing bars
(together with miniature window
to left), the right-hand range
with 2 sash windows of
Victorian type. Bracketed fascia
boards of Victorian or later date
to each house, but show
windows and door to No 6 only.
A single shop occupied the
ground storey of all 3 houses in
1974. The rear wall,
overlooking the churchyard,
evidently antedates the present
houses. Flint with some brick,
including blocked openings.
Nos 4 to 10 (even) form a
group. Listing NGR:

TQ1463004429

BROADWATER STREET I 20-
EAST 1. 5406 (North Side) JUN-
Broadwater Nos 7 to 13 (odd) 1975

TQ 1404 16/204 20.6.75. Il GV
2. Probably circa 1800. A range
of cottages, occupying a
prominent slanting position at
the mouth of the street and
forming part of the view of
Broadwater Church. 2 storeys.
Moulded wooden eaves and
moulded string course between
storeys. 5 not quite evenly
spaced sash windows with
slender glazing bars. No 7 has



Broadwater
Street West (26
and 28
including 28A)

Chapel Road

ST PAULS CHURCH

a modern shopfront, No 9 a
probably Victorian shopfront.
Nos 11 and 13 have altered
modern windows to the ground
floor and left-hand doors with
overlights. No 11 has a door of
5 moulded panels, No 13 one
of 6 moulded panels (the top 2
glazed). The roofs are of even,
low pitch, but No 7 is slated,
the rest tiled. Nos 11 and 13
are tile-hung to the upper
storey; elsewhere there is
stucco. The return front of No
7, to the west, projects at the
right end and is tile-hung to the
upper storey, the rest being
rendered. The rear of the
cottages has sash windows
with slender glazing bars. Nos
7 to 13 (odd) form a prominent
group. Listing NGR:

TQ1464504445

BROADWATER STREET I 21-
WEST 1. 5406 (North-East MAY -
Side) Broadwater Nos 26 and 1976

28 (including No 28A) TQ 1404
16/203 11 2. C18 or earlier.
Irregular pair of cottages,
evidently timber-framed. Each
has a 2-storey gabled front,
that of No 26 angled back, on
the curve of the street. Painted
render. One sash of Victorian
type to each above and
Victorian or later shopfront
below. Re-tiled roofs. External
chimney at north end with
upper part removed, single
offset below. No 26 extends
less far to the rear than No 28
but has a smaller gable
extension. Exposed timbers of
ground floor interior show much
renewal. Listing NGR:

TQ1454804519

TQ 1402 SE WORTHING [1* 11-
CHAPEL ROAD (West side) OCT-
753/3/22 St Paul's Church 1949

11.10.1949 II* Chapel of ease,
now church. 1812, exterior by
john Rebecca of Worthing,
interior by Charles Hide;
extended and altered 1893.
Yellow stock brick in Flemish
bond with ashlar dressings,
east end stuccoed and scored
as ashlar; concealed roof 2



storeys, 3 x 6 bays. East end:
3-bay pedimented Tuscan
portico on 3-step podium with
attached pilasters at gable wall.
Blocked central entry, now
window, and side-doors, all in
moulded architraves, the side-
doors having panelled double-
doors and fanlights with
decorative glazing bars. Plat
band breaking forward over
doors and with segmental
pediment over central door; 3
recesses above. Behind
portico, body of church has tall,
flat-coped, parapet with dies
and, at east end, central
cupola, on stepped podium,
with Greek-key fueze and ball-
finial. Returns: east bay treated
as front and having a curved-
backed rectangular recess to
ground floor and a 24-pane
sash window in eared
architrave above. T o rest, 2-
light segmental-arched
mullioned windows to ground
floor and round-arched
windows above, all having
gauged brick arches and stone
inner surrounds and cills;
ashlar cill band to 1st floor. On
south side at left end, steps up
to door in projecting flat-roofed
porch; further left, tall added I-
storey block with 2 windows.
North side marked by attached
church hall of 1964. Interior:
added chancel at west end in
classical style with columns,
attached pilasters, moulded
cornice, keyed arch with
panelled soffit, panelled vault,
tessellated floor, and alabaster
and marble facings of 1912.
Body of church has coffered
ceiling with panelled beams;
columns support side galleries
which have panelled and
balustraded fronts and original
pews; organ gallery at east end
with royal coat of arms.
Decorative rnid-C19 wooden
pulpit and choir stalls. Font,
brought from Chichester
Cathedral, has C 15 octagonal
polished stone bowl. The
chapel of ease was built to



Chapel Road

WORTHING TOWN HALL
INCLUDING ASSEMBLY
HALL AND WORTHING
ROOM

serve Worthing when this was
still part of the parish of
Broadwater. H A L Jefferson, St
Paul's Church Worthing: a short
history (1969). Listing NGR:

TQ1481802837

1. CHAPEL ROAD 5406 Il 19-
Worthing Town Hall including JAN-
Assembly Hall and Worthing 1982

Room TQ 1402 NE 3/228 Il 2.
Erected in 1933-4, C Cowles
Voysey Architect. Detailing by J
Brandon-Jones. The front part,
the Town Hall, is in Neo-
Georgian style. Centre and 2
wings. The centre is of 3
storeys red brick. Hipped slate
roof with stone eave cornice
Band below 2nd floor and
plinth, 9 sashes in moulded
architraves. Central lonic
Portico with motto "EX TERRA
COPIAM E MARI SALUTEM"
1st floor windows behind
portico have cast iron
balconettes. Doorcase with
console brackets. Clock tower
with cupola, surmounted by ball
finial and 8 Tuscan columns
with plumed capitals. Flankings
wings of 2 storeys in matching
style. Red brick. Slate roof.
Stone cornice and plinth. 5
sashes. Similar doorcases with
entablatures and console
brackets. The Assembly Hall to
the rear derives from the
Scandinavian Modernist style
with Art Deco overtones. 2
storeys red brick. Cornice of
bricks set endwise. 5 bays, the
3 centre ones projecting with 3
Art Deco style stone tragic
masks over waves above 1st
floor windows. Pivoting
casement windows. Triple
bronze doors with 8 panels
divided by panels of stone
rustication and wave pattened
cornice with the letter W (for
Worthing). Canopy above. 6
steps to street flanked by
enormous stone urns on
square plinths. The Worthing
Room is a 1 storey addition in
matching style to the West. The
interior of the Town Hall has an
impressive marble entrance



Chapel Road
(64)

THE WORTHING
TABERNACLE

hall having staircase with
elaborate cast iron balustrade.
The Assembly Hall has a room
with Art Deco style reliefs with
a marine theme star-shaped
light fittings. The pressenium
arch to the hall is flanked by
relief sea horses. Listing NGR:

TQ1477402944

The following building shall be 1 02-
added to the list: CHAPEL DEC-
ROAD 1. 5406 TQ 1402 NE 1988

3/272 No 64 The Worthing
Tabernacle 1l Nonconformist
church and church hall.
Thought to have been built in
1897 by Lund but rain water
heads are dated 1908. Front of
snecked rubble with Bath stone
dressings. Other elevations are
of stock brick with red brick
dressings. Slate roof. West
front has central gable with
cross-shaped saddlestone
flanked by octagonal pinnacles
dying into 1st floor square
buttresses with inset columns
and buttresses to ground floor.
Central rose window with 6
trefoliated headed lancets and
guatrefoil band below. Stone
band between floors. Ground
floor has central triple round-
headed window flanked by
single round-headed windows,
all connected by hood
moulding. Wings have double
mullioned window to 1st floor
and gabled entrances with
round headed arches with
engaged granite columns. 8
light fanlight with Art Nouveau
glazing and double plank doors
with large decorative hinges.
Side elevations are of stock
brick in Flemish bond with red
brick dressings. 2 gables with 3
lancets each to 1st floor
connected by hood moulding
and casements to ground floor
with dogtooth moulded stone
voussoirs above. Church hall at
rear is in similar materials with
2 gables. Interior has 2 bays
supported on tall iron plumed
capitals. Round-headed
chancel arch with granite
column, pendants. Large



Church Road

Church Road

CHURCHYARD WALL OF
ST ANDREW'S CHURCH,
AND TABLE TOMB TO
JOHN PARSON AND C18
GRAVE STONES WITHIN IT

ST ANDREWS CHURCH

curved wooden pulpit
supported on 2 twisted columns
with 2 curved staircases with
elaborate iron railings. East
rose window with stained glass
floral panes. Side walls have
triple lancet windows
interrupted by the balcony with
kingfisher roundels at the top.
West window has floral
decoration. Curved wooden
balcony with diagonally placed
boarding quatrefoil carving and
brattishing. Original iron lamp
brackets attached. Vertical
dado-panelling. Walls of gallery
have original iron lamp
brackets. Original curved
wooden pews. Unusual roof
structure boarded with modified
curved braces held together
with iron tie rods. Rear
vestibule has fireplace with Art
Nouveau pomegranite motif
and staircase to Minister's
office has elaborate cast iron
balusters and scrolled tread
ends. Front vestibule has
elaborate cast iron balusters to
staircase and double doors with
elaborate brass handles and art
nouveau tracery. Listing NGR:

TQ1479402892

CHURCH ROAD 1. 5406 Il 21-
(South Side) West Tarring MAY -
Churchyard wall of St Andrew's 1976

Church, and table-tomb to John
Parson and C18 grave stones
within it TQ 1303 12/59A TQ
1304 SW 15/59A 11 2. A low flint
wall, perhaps C18. Table-tomb
to John Parson, d 1633. A
number of C18 grave stones.
Listing NGR: TQ1306404000

TQ 1304 SW CHURCH ROAD II* 11-
753/15/59 West Tarring 11- OCT-
OCT-49 (South side) St 1949

Andrews Church (Formerly
listed as: CHURCH ROAD
West Tarring West Tarring
Church (St Andrew's)) GV II*
Church. Late C13, C15, and
C16; mid-C19 restoration and
alterations; 1885 scheme of
mosaic decoration, designed by
William Butterfield and installed
by itinerant Italian mosaicists
employed by Burke & Co.



Knapped flint, re-set mid-C19,
with stone dressings.
Graduated Horsham slate to
chancel and porch roofs; wood
shingles to spire; 1950s plain-
tile roofs to nave and aisles.
Plan: C13 5-bay aisled nave
with clerestorey and central
north and south porches (mid-
C19); lower C15 2-bay chancel;
C15 west tower with C16 spire.
In Early English, Decorated and
Perpendicular styles, having:
guoins to angles; buttresses
with ashlar off-sets; quoined
pointed-arched openings,
principal ones with
hoodmoulds; corbelled raised
verges with ashlar copings and
gable crosses; off-set stepped
ashlar copings to embattled 4-
stage tower. Nave: 4 small
windows to clerestorey and
aisles; taller aisle east- and
west-end windows, the former
of 2 cusped lights with
quatrefoil over. Tower: west
end: large angle butt resses;
door in moulded surround with
hoodmould; replacement panel
tracery to window over door;
narrow trefoil-headed light
above, and 2-light window to
upper stage with reticulated
tracery. North side: windows to
3rd and 4th stages similar.
South side: similar 3rd-stage
light; 4th stage has window of
paired cusped lights with
wooden lattice. Similar window
to east side, below clock face
and with oculus on south side.
Vice at south-east angle has
small rectangular chamfered
lights. Octagonal spire with
weather-cock. Chancel: offset
plinth. Central butress. 2-light
windows with renewed tracery;
restored 5-light east window
with cusped tracery to head.
Late-C20 semi-subterranean
vestry attached to south side of
nave. Interior: nave: pointed-
arched arcades with simply-
moulded bases and capitals to
circular columns; continuous
hoodmoulds with carved
pendants. Double piscina in



Church Road
(54 to 58 even)

south-east corner has moulded,
cusped, architrave and bowls in
the form of a trefoil and a
guatrefoil. Mid-C19 chancel
arch, crown-post roof, pulpit,
lectern and some surviving
floor tiles. 1885 mosaics above
aisle arcades and tower arch
depicting the 12 apostles set
above the apostles creed and
portraits of the patriarchs.
Tower: arch carried on
attached semi-octagonal
columns; pointed-arched vice
door; early-C18 Stiles family
wall monument comprising
aedicule with coat-of-arms
over; flanking oval memorial
tablets; C19 font. Chancel: C15
screen with perpendicular-style
tracery, metal spikes, 6
misericords on east side carved
with heads and foliage and the
decorative panelling returning
along chancel north and south
walls (part-restored) with
contemporary choir-stall fronts
and fleur-de-lis finials.
Jacobean altar-rail with turned
balusters, stylised floral motif to
frieze, and acorn finials.
Matching contemporary altar
table. North porch:
commemorative brasses record
the installation of the mosaics
and their cleaning (1913). Red
and black floor tiles. Inner door
has moulded pointed arch with
leaf terminals on attached
columns. Plainer south
doorway opposite. Donkin, V,
"Mosaics at St Andrew, West
Tarring", Church Building, Issue
56, March/April 1999, pp. 62-3.
Pevsner, N, The buildings of
England, West Sussex, pp.
392-3. Listing NGR:
TQ1309704017

CHURCH ROAD 1. 5406 Il
(South Side) West Tarring Nos
54 to 58 (even) TQ 1304 SW
15/188 20.10.75. 1l GV 2.
Probably circa 1800. Terrace of
3 cottages, closely adjoining
buildings to the west. 2 storeys.
Coursed cobbles with painted
brick quoining to corners and
openings, and modillion eaves

20-
OCT-
1975


https://20.10.75

Crescent Road OUR LADY OF SION
CONVENT

cornice. Old tiled roof. Ridge
chimneys between houses.
One sash window to each
cottage, the lower ones with
glazing bars. Right-hand doors
to Nos 54 and 56; left-hand
door to No 58. All openings
camber-headed. Nos 1, 2 and 3
Market House and Nos 54 to
58 (even) form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1319104022

CRESCENT ROAD 1. 5406 I 21-
1/105 (East Side) In the entries MAY -
for: TQ 1402 NW 1/I051 Oar 1976

Lady of Sion Convent TQ 1402
NW 1/1061 Wall of Our Lady of
Sion Convent, extending from
south-east corner of building,
along Crescent Road
CRESCENT ROAD (East Side)
shall be amended to read:
CRESCENT ROAD (West
Side) -------m-mmmm e
-- CRESCENT ROAD 1. 5406
(East Side) Our Lady of Sion
Convent TQ 1402 NW 1/105
GV 2. Built as one composition
with the abutting church, which
is attributed to H Clutton and
dates from 1864. 2 storeys.
Plum-red brick with 2 pairs of
bands of dark brick. East
range, extending south along
street from ritual west end of
church, has 5 sash windows,
semi-circular staircase
projection, and 2 further sash
windows south of this. There is
a cross-range at the south end,
the east front of which projects
towards the street and has a
round-arch opening (of banded
brick with faintly pointed drip-
mould above), giving access to
internal porch with geometric
tile decoration. Left of the porch
is a partly external chimney
corbelled out over a narrow
buttress. Red tile roofs, over
brick eaves nogging, which is
also applied to the gable end.
Further ranges of the convent
extend towards Our Lady of
Sion School, which adjoins to
the west. Our Lady of Sion
Convent, and wall extending
south form a group with St
Mary's Roman Catholic Church,



Crescent Road

Durrington Hill

Durrington Hill

Durrington Hill

WALL OF OUR LADY OF
SION CONVENT,
EXTENDING FROM SOUTH
EAST CORNER OF
BUILDING, ALONG
CRESCENT ROAD

THE MANOR HOUSE

GREENSTEDE HOUSE

DOWER HOUSE

Richmond Road and No 39
Richmond Road. Listing NGR:
TQ1443502760

CRESCENT ROAD 1. 5406
(East Side) Wall of Our Lady of
Sion Convent, extending from
south-east corner of building,
along Crescent Road TQ 1402
NW 1/106 Il GV 2. Probably
earlier than the convent. Flint.
Our Lady of Sion Convent, and
wall extending south form a
group with St Mary's Roman
Catholic Church, Richmond
Road and No 39 Richmond
Road. Listing NGR:
TQ1446202690
DURRINGTON HILL 1. 5406
(East Side) Durrington TQ 10
NW 23/73 Durrington Manor In
the above entry: Durrington
Manor Wall be amended to
read The Manor House ----------
DURRINGTON HILL 1. 5406
(East Side) Durrington
Durrington Manor TQ 10 NW
23/73 11 2. The front facing the
road is C18, originally red brick,
but has been refaced with
cement. Horsham stone slate
roof. 2 storeys. 3 windows.
Stuccoed porch up 3 steps,
recently reroofed with red tiles.
Glazing bars missing. The
garden front is Victorian. Listing
NGR: TQ1194205314
DURRINGTON HILL 1. 5406
(West Side) Durrington
Greenstede House TQ 10 NW
23/220 1l 2. Probably early C18.
2 storeys. Very steep slated
roof, taller than the house
below, with upturn over plain
wooden eaves. 5 evenly-
spaced casement windows, the
lower ones camber-headed.
Both slightly left of centre are a
ridge chimney and the porch,
which is a later addition (with
pointed opening and jutting
shoulders). Listing NGR:
TQ1186905261
DURRINGTON HILL 1. 5406
(East Side) Durrington Dower
House TQ 10 NW 23/73A 11 2.
Abutting Durrington Manor at

21-
MAY -
1976

21-
MAY -
1976

21-
MAY -
1976

21-
MAY -
1976



Durrington Hill

Durrington
Lane

Durrington
Lane

ST SYMPHORIAN'S

WALL ENCLOSING FRONT
GARDEN OF ST MARY'S
FARM HOUSE ON SOUTH,
EAST AND NORTH WITH
RETURN STRETCH FROM
NORTH WEST CORNER TO
NORTH END OF HOUSE,
AND FURTHER SECTION
FROM REAR OF HOUSE
TO SHEDS TO THE WEST

ST MARY'S FARMHOUSE

south-west corner and
extending towards road at right
angles to it. Formerly
outbuildings, now converted to
a 2-storey house. The main
east part is a former barn, of
flint with brick dressings,
probably contemporary with the
Manor, or somewhat later. Tiled
roof, half-hipped at east end.
North side has vertical quoin-
bands, one dormer towards the
west end and one modern
ground floor window at the east
end. South front altered. At the
west of the barn is a short
cross-range now bearing the
appearance of a cottage,
originally probably older than
the Manor, but largely
reconstructed, including the
west front (which has reset old
timber over left ground-floor
window). Flint with brick
dressings. Tiled roof. Tablet on
north side states: "S 1819".
This item is included for its
group value with the Manor.
Listing NGR: TQ1192805307

DURRINGTON HILL 1. 5406 Il 11-
(West Side) Durrington St OCT-
Symphorian's (formerly listed 1949

as Durrington Church (St
Symphorian's)) TQ 10 NW
23/72 11.10.49. B 2. Early
English Chapel disused and in
ruins from 1650-1914.
Restored 1914-1919. Chancel
added 1939-1940. Listing NGR:

TQ1183405298

DURRINGTON LANE 1. 5406 |l 07-
Wall enclosing front garden of MAY -
St Mary's Farm House on 1975

south, east and north with

return stretch from north-west

corner to north end of house,

and further section from rear of

house to sheds to the west TQ

1104 8/170 7.5.75. 1l GV 2.

Low. Flint. Probably

contemporary with house. St

Mary's Farm House, its wall,

the barn to the south west and

the barn and outbuilding to the

south form a group. Listing

NGR: TQ1191504787

DURRINGTON LANE 1. 5406 Il 07-
St Mary's Farm House TQ 1104 MAY -



Elizabeth Road ELIZABETH ALMSHOUSES

Farncombe
Road

(1 to 4 CONSEC)

LAMP STANDARD

8/169 7.5.75. Il GV 2. Probably 1975
mid C18, but with an earlier
core perhaps C14 or C15. 2
storeyed detached oblong.
Brick with steep roof. Largely
asymmetrical fenestration. 2
evenly arranged 3-light
casement windows, but
additional left-hand 3-light on
ground floor and additional
single-light between the 2 on
the upper storey. Door
somewhat right of centre. All
openings camber-headed.
Ridge chimney, perhaps
inserted to original open hall.
Elements of 3-bay timber frame
visible in upper storey. Modern
lean-to extension at right, old
one along rear; both one
storey. St Mary's Farm House,
its wall, the barn to the south
west and the barn and
outbuilding to the south form a
group. Listing NGR:

TQ1190704770

ELIZABETH ROAD 1. 5406 Il 21-
(North Side) Nos 1 to 4 MAY-
(consec.) Elizabeth 1976

Almshouses TQ 1402 NW
1/102 Il GV 2. Dated 1860. Red
brick with 2 bands of grey
headers and stone dressings. 2
storeys. Symmetrical design of
some richness. South front
divides into 2 parts, each with 3
windows (the middle narrower)
and central porch of wood with
criss-cross gable work and
spiral corner balusters. Upper
windows are 2-light and single-
light, lower 3-light under
shallow pointed arches. All are
leaded casements. Inscribed
panels between upper windows
and Dutch gablet above centre
of building with round-arch
niche and statue below. Slate
roof with decorated cresting
(also applied to porches). 3 tall
moulded ridge chimneys, the
gable ones projecting on upper
storey over corbelling. Nos 1 to
4 (consec.) Elizabeth
Almshouses form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1441002895

In the entry for; WORTHING I 02-
FORDCOMBE ROAD TQ 1502 AUG-



Field Row

Findon Road
(311 and 313)

Forest Road

(2)

WALL ALONG EAST SIDE
OF FIELD ROW BETWEEN
AMBROSE PLACE AND
SHELLEY ROAD

GOAR COTTAGES

LOXWOOD

NE 7/10005 Lamp Standard I 1993
the entry shall be amended to
read; TQ 1502 NE WORTHING
FARNCOMBE ROAD 7/10005
Lamp Standard Il ------------------
------------------ The following
building shall be added to the
list; WORTHING
FORDCOMBE ROAD TQ 1502
NE 7/10005 Lamp Standard II
Lamp standard. ¢c1900,
manufactured by Mackenzie
Bros of Edinburgh. Cast iron
overhanging arm variety. About
20 feet high. Shaft is octagonal
with floral and fleur de lys
motifs half way down and deep
plinth to base. Top has ornate
tapering arm supporting
hexagonal iron and frosted
glass lantern. Supporting
brackets have daffodil design.
One side has connection box
door with Worthing Coat of
Arms (Shield with 3 fishes) and
motto "EX TERRA COPIAM E
MARI SALVYEM". The only
surviving example of this type
left in Worthing. Listing NGR:

TQ1558302901

FIELD ROW 1. 5406 Wall [l 21-
along east side of Field Row MAY -
between Ambrose Place and 1976

Shelley Road TQ 1402 NE
3/124 11 2. Flint with some brick
sections. Probably C18. Listing
NGR: TQ1475802608

FINDON ROAD 1. 5406 (West |l 21-
Side) Nos 311 and 313 (Goar MAY -
Cottages) TQ 10 NW 23/269 I 1976

2. Probably later C18. A
symmetrical pair of cottages on
the acute corner with Bost Hill.
2 storeys. Flint, with numerous
single-course bands of brick
and quoining to openings,
corners and down centre. 2
widely-spaced window with
glazing bars and cambered
heads. Doors paired at centre
(with cambered heads). Steep,
tiled roof. Rear extension under
slope of roof. Listing NGR:

TQ1255207548

FOREST ROAD 1. 5406 (East |l 21-
Side) Broadwater No 2 MAY -
(Loxwood) TQ 1404 16/53 Ii 1976

GV 2. Early C19. 2 storeys. 3



Furze Road

Goring Road

DURRINGTON OR
SALVINGTON MILL

ST MARY'S
CHURCH,GORING

windows. White brick. Slate
roof. Trellised wooden porch
with iron balcony over.
Recessed door in round-
headed frame with semi-
circular fanlight. 4 Panels cut
out of original door and glazed.
No 2 forms a group with Nos 19
to 27 (odd) and the wall and
gatepiers to No 27 Broadwater
Street East. Listing NGR:

TQ1472704422

FURZE ROAD 1. 5406 (South I 11-
Side) High Salvington OCT-
Durrington or Salvington Mill 1949

(Formerly listed as The Mill) TQ
10 SW 23/69 11.10.49. 11 2.
Originally Durrington Mill but
now usually called Salvington
Mill, as it is actually in High
Salvington which did not exist
when the Mill was built. Post
type with round house and
fantail, (the round house
modernised and windows
inserted). Date 1700 over door.
Timbers tarred. 3 sweeps
intact, one missing, Machinery
of the mill in working order.
Listing NGR: TQ1227006666

Church of Norman origins, [1* 11-
demolished in 1836 and rebuilt OCT-
to the designs of Decimus 1949

Burton, retaining the piers of
the Norman arcade, the lower
parts of the chancel arch and,
according to the church guide,
the N and S walls to window sill
level. Gothick style.

MATERIALS: The church is
rendered and blocked out with
slate roofs.

PLAN: Nave with W end
gallery; chancel with 3 bay
aisles, NE vestry; SE doorway
and W entrance through the W
tower. 1966 vestry block added
to N side of the chancel; small
1999 lavatory block added to
the N face of the tower.

EXTERIOR: The render gives a
smooth exterior. Buttressed
chancel and aisles, roofed
seperately from the nave, with
coped parapets. All windows



with Decorated style tracery
and hoodmoulds with carved
label stops: 2- and 3- light to
the aisles, the chancel window
5- light. Slender 3- stage W
tower with large, gables,
diagonal buttresses rising to
belfry stage only, a plain
parapet above a corbelled
cornice and a tall shingled
spire. 2-centered moulded W
doorway with detached shafts
and carved. The tower has
octafoils in roundels and 2-light
traceried belfry windows. A
sculpted figure of Christ on the
S wall is a World War 1
memorial. Clerestory windows
visible only from the the
interior.

INTERIOR: The interior has
plastered walls and 3- bay N &
S arcades of round piers on
moulded bases. The volute-
carved capitals appear to have
been re-cut if not wholly of
1838. Simple chamfered
arches spring from the piers.
Flat plastered ceilings to aisles.
Plain chamfered chancel arch:
unplastered masonary below
the springing of the arch
appears to be C12. Flat
plastered nave roof in the
Gothick tradition, divided into 6
large panels by moulded ribs
with shallow Tudor arched
braces, pierced trefoils in the
spandrels and pretty coloured
vine bosses. The chancel roof
is similar in character but Tudor
arched in profile. The E wall
retains its original 1838 Gothick
scheme with ogee-headed
frames to the Commandments
and Creed and blind Gothick
arcading below. A deep
moulded string on the chancel
walls rises over the opposed N
and S doorways. On the N side
of the chancel there is a
chamfered arch into a shallow
organ chamber. Deep W end
gallery (contaning organ pipes)
carried on octagonal iron piers
with capitals with boxed in SW
staircase. The gallery has a



Goring Road

OLD COURT HOUSE

blind arcaded front with a
Gothick frame to a clock face in
the middle. The porch (bottom
stage of the tower) has a flat
plastered ceiling with a pattern
of moulded ribs. Unusual font
with round bowl, the base
carved, and deep vertical
mouldings to the stern. The
1888 polygonal timber pulpit
with traceried panels. 1888
nave benches with shaped
ends. The nave paving
contains many inscribed slabs.
Monuments include a late C15
brass, many C18 and early C19
wall monuments. Early C18
monument to Susan Cook with
a lively bust; large white marble
momument by Chantry to
Isabella Lyon, d 1836. E ends
of aisles with stained glass
windows by Powell. The
chancel arch is covered with a
1954 mural by Hans Feibusch.

SUMMARY OF
IMPORTANCE: This church is
of special interest as a
handsome 1838 design by
Decimus Bureton which retains
the Norman piers, although re-
tooled, and some walling of the
original church. The 1888
reordering of the interior
complements the pretty Gothick
interior, and it has a number of
interesting momuments.

ListingTQ10SW24/82

11/10/1949

GORING ROAD 1. 5406 (North Il 21-
Side) Goring-by-Sea Old Court MAY -
House TQ 10 SW 24/232 11 2. 2 1976

storeys. Front range probably
circa 1840, but incorporating
earlier thick walling (probably
stone) and remains of former
external stair at east end.
Symmetrical, rendered front,
with 2-storeyed gabled
projection in centre, forming
porch below. 3 widely-spaced
sash windows, with glazing
bars in upper storey only.
Double doors to porch of 3
panels (the top glazed). Slate
roof. Partly external gable



Goring Road
(203)

Goring Street

THE THATCHED COTTAGE

THE BULL INN

chimneys. Rear range probably
C18 but formed out of earlier
work. Brick. Somewhat shorter
in length than the front range.
Irregular fenestration; 5
windows above (one blind and
the left-hand a horizontal sash);
3 windows and left-hand door
below. All sashes and glazing
bars absent only from upper
right-hand one. Slate roof with
off-centre ridge chimney. Trap-
door in north-west of house
said to lead to dungeon of
former court. Listing NGR:

TQ1112902620

GORING ROAD 1. 5406 (North I 11-
Side) Goring-by-Sea TQ 10 SW OCT-
24/83 11.10.49 The Thatched 1949

Cottage In the above entry:
GORING ROAD (North Side)
Goring-by-Sea shall be
amended to reads: GORING
ROAD (South Side) ) Goring-
by-Sea ---------------msm -
----- GORING ROAD 1. 5406
(North Side) Goring-by-Sea
The Thatched Cottage TQ 10
SW 24/83 11.10.49. 11 2. C16. 2
storeys. 2 windows. Timber
framed, painted brick or plaster
between. Thatched roof
replaced by tiles since last
survey. Listing NGR:

TQ1146602601

GORING STREET 1. 5406 I 21-
(West Side) Goring-by-Sea The MAY -
Bull Inn TQ 10 SW 24/231 11 2. 1976

Exterior C18, but interior in part
earlier. 2 storeys and attic.
Main block symmetrical. 3 sash
windows (with keystones
above), the middle one
narrower and the upper ones
with glazing bars. A probably
modern doorway with flat hood
on moulded brackets. Renewed
tiled roof of slightly broken,
steep pitch. Gable chimneys.
Front painted, south end flint
and brick. Lower 2-storey south
extension of flint and brick,
perhaps partly older. One sash
window above, forward
projection below (with flat top,
forward tiled pitch and shallow
bow window in flat opening).
Gable chimney. Tiled roof with



Goring Way

Goring Way
(90)

JUPPS BARN

THE COTTAGE

flat top and short tiled pitches.
Interior has exposed timber-
framing and floor below ground
level. Listing NGR:

TQ1053402690

The following building shall be I 31-
added to the list. WORTHING JAN-
GORING WAY TQ 10 SW 1989

(south side) 24/235 JUPPS
BARN Il Barn, now church hall,
and attached farmbuilding, now
outbuilding. Aisle post dated
"MH 1771"; mid-late C20
attractions. Coursed flint-stone
with red brick dressings; pantile
roof. 5-bay barn with rear aisle;
former farmbuilding attached to
rear left. Brick quoins to angles,
cart-entry and slit vents.
Central cart-entry masked by
C20 porch which has double
board door with strap hinges;
former cart entry has timber
posts with iron hooks from
former doors and C20 small-
pane glazing at top. Flanking
cart entry are 2 tiers of vents, 3
to each level. Hipped roof.
Returns: 2 over 2 vents; right
return partly masked by
attached church (not included
in listing). Rear: central gabled
cart porch, entry now blocked
in cobblestone and with added
bell under canopy. To right an
inserted doorway. Former farm
building attached and
projecting on right has board
door on right and 2 C20 small-
pane casements, the openings
with C20 timber lintels but old
brick jambs and sloping tile
window sills; roof hipped on
right. Interior barn; original
timberwork complete, including
aisle posts (one with date) on
padstones; straight brace to
arcade plate and tie beams;
queen strut roof trusses;
staggered butt purlins; old
rafters. The barn is recorded as
having been built in 1771 for
George Jupp, farmer (The
Story of Goring and Highdown,
p31). Listing NGR:

TQ1089102984
In the entry for GORING WAY 1l 21-
(north side) 9/165 Goring-by- MAY -



Grafton Road

Sea NO 88 (The Cottage) the 1976
address shall be amended to
read: GORING WAY (north
side) GORING-BY-SEA NO 90
(The Cottage) ----------------------
-------------- GORING WAY 1.
5406 (North Side) Goring-by-
Sea No 88 (The Cottage) TQ
1003 9/165 1l 2. Probably early
C19. A cottage orne or possibly
a remodelling in this manner.
Detached. 2 storeys. Hipped
thatched roof of fairly low pitch.
Rendered front, but west end
shows flint and brick
construction. 3 casement
windows with metal diagonal
lattice-work glazing bars,
evidently original. 2 further
similar windows in sides of
central gabled tiled porch.
Open hearth in main room.
Listing NGR: TQ1080503048

753/3/24 GRAFTON ROAD 11- II* 11-
OCT-49 (East side) Christ OCT-
Church II* Town church, built in 1949

the centre of a square. 1840-43
to the designs of John Elliott of
Chichester in lancet style, cost
about 4,500 pounds the original
design amended following
criticism from the Camden
Society. Chancel remodelled
and refurbished in 1894. Flint
with densely-packed galetting
of flint flakes; some of the
dressings are Caen stone but
Ellerary notes that the quoins
are experimental artificial stone
(24); brick dressings to the
1894 phase; slate roofs. Elleray
notes that the inner tower walls
are brick and the upper two
stages braced with timber (29).
West tower, clerestoried nave;
lean-to N and S aisles, N and S
transepts; chancel with N organ
chamber and S vestries. 4-
stage tower with a freestone
parapet above a corbelled
cornice and angle buttresses
which become diagonal on the
upper two stages. Lancet
windows except for a
Decorated style traceried W
window. Steps up to the W
doorway which has a double
chamfered arch. The tower was



underpinned in 1907-8 under
the supervision of Mr R Singer
Hyde. The lean-to aisles are tall
and narrow with angle
buttresses and double
chamfered lancet windows with
hoodmoulds. Small paired
lancet clerestory windows in
square-headed frames. The
transepts have large lancets in
their W walls and stepped triple
lancets in the N and S walls
above doorways. The chancel
has a 3-light Decorated style
traceried E window. The 1894
vestries and organ chamber
are built in a style to match the
original but have yellow brick
dressings to the openings. On
the S side there is a polygonal
vestry porch with a steep
pyramidal roof and the earlier
C19 vestry exists behind later
additions. INTERIOR.
Unusually tall, slender,
octagonal Caen stone arcade
piers with vertical recessed roll
mouldings at the corners of
each octagon; moulded capitals
and double chamfered arches.
Pitch pine tie beam, king post
and strut roof to the nave with
arched braces carried on short
posts on moulded corbels;
cusped detail. The transept
roofs are similar. The aisle
roofs are essentially one half of
the same design. Moulded
1894 chancel arch on short
shafts with moulded capitals.
The chancel roof has 3
hammerbeam trusses with
cusped decoration. The
transepts have 1865 galleries,
the N gallery with raked seats,
the S gallery used as the organ
chamber since 1971. 3-light
1894 internal W window with
reticulated style tracery,
inserted when the W gallery
was removed. Full set of nave
benches with poppyhead
finials, a rarity. The 1894
chancel has a mosaic reredos
with a frieze of mosaic foliage
and text. The mosaic extends
across the whole of the E wall
and returnsto N and S as a



Grafton Road
(57)

BENTWORTH LODGE

dado; mosaic sanctuary floor.
1894 choir stalls with open
traceried frontals; encaustic
tiles to the chancel floor. 1894
polygonal stone pulpit by Jones
and Willis of London. The pulpit
is on a stone stem with carved
stiff-leaf cornices, the sides
decorated with blind tracery
and marble shafts. Font with a
small octagonal bowl decorated
with blind quatrefoils on a thick
stem with trefoil-headed
panels. 1892 organ by J J
Binns of Leeds introduced in
1970. Oak panelling in tower
porch of 1929. W window by
Bell of Bristol, 1850. 'Cathedral’
glass of 1894 in internal W
window and aisles. Several
C19 and later wall tablets and
brasses. Although it was sited
in what was a fashionable part
of Worthing, this finely detailed
church was erected specifically
for the accommodation of the
poorer classes and within an
evangelical tradition. It is the
first Gothic Revival church built
in the town. Christ Church is an
exemplary ambitious pre-
archaeological Gothic style C19
church, preserving its original
slender roofs and arcades and
a full set of benches with
poppyhead finials in the nave.
Sources Elleray, D Robert,
Christ Church Worthing, 1978
Pevsner, Sussex, 1965, 387
Listing NGR: TQ1467402783

GRAFTON ROAD 1. 5406 I 21-
(West Side) No 57 (Bentworth MAY -
Lodge) TQ 1402 SW 3/108 11 2. 1976

Circa 1840. Carefully
composed villa. 2 storeys.
Stuccoed. Strongly projecting
eaves below hipped, slated
roof. Centre portion: 2 sash
windows with glazing bars and
straight moulded hoods above
the ground floor ones. The rear
of the building is wider, the
angles with the centre portion
being filled on the ground
storey by porches with moulded
entablature and flat roofs.
Glazed double doors in left
porch; single but bipartite door



Grand Avenue
(18)

BLACK NEST HALL

with 4 vertical panels in right
porch; both facing front. Narrow
blind windows on front facing
wall above. 2 sash windows
with glazing bars on each side
of building. Listing NGR:
TQ1463102751

TQ 1302 WORTHING GRAND
AVENUE 753/14/10036
Number 18 Black Nest Hall Ii
Includes: Black Nest Hall,
BATH ROAD, WORTHING.
Barn, then house. C18
(reportedly 1728), dismantled,
re-erected and converted 1926-
7 by C P Munn and A
Beresford Pite; 1960s addition;
restoration and alterations c.
1975. Timber framed with
herring-bone brick nogging;
gables tile-hung with bands of
fishscale tiles; concrete tile
roof; brick chimneys. 6-bay
barn with rear lean-to and
opposing cart-entries, that at
rear in midstrey. Converted to
house with central open hall
spanned by balconies at two
levels to provide
communication between rooms
at either end; rear lean-to and
midstrey retained, the latter
housing stair. Converted in
Tudor style, having: narrow
panels and curved braces to
framing; chamfered plinth;
mullioned windows with leaded
lights and casements, windows
at left ("solar") end having
Tudor-arched lights; 2-storey
canted glazed porch with
mullions and transoms and
Tudor-arched board door; large
decorative chimneys. 2 storeys
and attic; 6 framed bays. Mid-
rail of timber frame concealed
by decorative lead band with
vine and grape motif. Entrance
to bay 3. Windows of 3, 4 and 6
lights to ground floor; 4, 3 and 3
lights above, the framing and
window to first -floor left bay
replacing former glazed screen
wall of internal balcony. Single,
pedimented, 3-light attic dormer
with console-bracketed eared
architrave. Lead rainwater
pipes. Roof has weather vane

15-
JUL-
1999



Half Moon
Lane (11)

Half Moon
Lane (43)

Hall Avenue

HALF MOON HOUSE

SALVINGTON NURSERIES

OFFINGTON HALL RIDING

and large chimney on left with
coupled diagonally-set stacks
with moulded heads; another
stack to rear of 5th bay.
Addition on right has re-set
1920s window and rainwater
pipe, and board door. Further
mullioned windows to rear and
returns. Interior: timber frame
has large-scantling unjowelled
wall-posts, large arched braces
to tie-beams; rectangular
panels; midrail; queen-post roof
with principal and common
rafters and staggered butt
purlins. Exposed brick walls at
either end of open hall with
large Tudor-arched fireplaces
and Tudor-arched openings.
Wooden open-well stair. Wide
floor-boards. Linenfold and
board doors. Wooden balusters
to balconies. Decoratively-
painted wind dial in attic. Re-
used C19 panelling to lower
ceiling in hall and lower
balcony. The original barn was
located at Dunsfold, Surrey. A
good-quality house of the
1920s exemplifying the Inter
War vogue for embellishing
genuine old buildings in a
Tudor style. Listing NGR:

TQ1340402178

HALF MOON LANE 1. 5406 Il 21-
(West Side) Durrington Half MAY -
Moon House (formerly Cottage) 1976

TQ 1205 10/76 Il 2. Circa 1840.
2 storeys. 3 windows.
Stuccoed. Slate roof. Doorway
with Doric pilasters and
entablature. Later addition of 1
window with higher facade to
the north. Listing NGR:

TQ1283105311

HALF MOON LANE 1. 5406 Il 21-
(West Side) Durrington MAY -
Salvington Nurseries or 1976

Taylor's Nurseries TQ 1205

10/77 11 2. Late C18. 2 storeys.

3 windows. Grey headers with

red brick dressings. Mansarded

roof of red tiles. Small cornice

with modillions below eaves.

Victorian porch added. Glazing

bars missing. Listing NGR:

TQ1283605461

HALL AVENUE 1. 5406 (West I 21-



Hall Close

Ham Road (27)

SCHOOL

OLD BREWHOUSE

OLD MILL COTTAGE

Side) Offington Offington Hall MAY -
Riding School TQ 1305 10/180 1976
Il 2. Probably C18. Former
stables of Offington Hall. A
symmetrical layout. Flint and
brick dressings. The main
range fronts the street. Full-
height rectangular passage
through centre, with round arch
to front. Semi-circular window
each side of this. Beyond
these, north and south are
blocked barn doors (the south
one now with a casement
window). Further windows to
the south end of the range
(which is used as a dwelling)
but blank at the north end.
Short wings extending from the
back of the main range, form 3-
sided courtyard, with hipped
roofs, the south wing having a
series of almost full-height
doors. Tall clock turret over the
centre of the barn, in 3 stages
(square with pediments; tiled
canted sides; open belfry),
crowned by tall weather vane.
Listing NGR: TQ1352205118

HALL CLOSE 1. 5406 I 21-
Offington Old Brewhouse TQ MAY -
1305 10/181 1l 2. Outbuilding of 1976

former Offington Manor, said to

date back to 1150. Present

structure probably mainly CI6-

C17. Now stands isolated in

modern development. An

oblong 2-storey timber-frame

building. Box-frame, with

regular grid of vertical and

horizontal timbers beneath

steep roof. Irregular

fenestration. Main front has 3

casement windows above and

3 below, together with 2 doors.

Small chimney at left gable

(with one-storey lean-to

extension beyond). Large, very

tall ridge chimney with offsets,

at right end, with one-storey

extension beyond, under roof

with same ridge height but

longer, steeper slopes, and

having 2 casement windows.

Listing NGR: TQ1344105179

HAM ROAD 1. 5406 (West I 01-
Side) Old Mill Cottage TQ 1602 SEP-
20/214 1.9.75. Il 2. Said to be 1975



Ham Road (27)

Heene Terrace

SIDE WALLS TO REAR
GARDEN OF OLD MILL
COTTAGE

1720 and to have had
connections with Navarino
Mills. Evidently originally a pair
of cottages. Painted cobbles
largely rendered on sides. Slate
roof with central ridge chimney.
Quoining to corners and
openings. 2 storeys. 1 widely-
spaced sliding sash to each
half, with glazing bars. The
doorways, on the outer sides of
these, now converted to
matching windows. Al
openings camber-headed. One
fixed window in front end of
south side, upstairs. A quoined
doorway in north side. Listing
NGR: TQ1617202808

HAM ROAD 1. 5406 (West
Side) Side walls to rear garden
of Old Mill Cottage TQ 1602
20/214A 11 2. Cobble walls,
probably contemporary with
house. Listing NGR:
TQ1621002899

HEENE TERRACE 1. 5406
East Mansions Heene Court
Mansions Nos 6 to 10 (consec.)
Nos 11 and 12 (Mayfair Hotel)
Nos 13 to 17 (consec.) West
Mansions TQ1402 SW 2/91 TQ
1302 14/91 12.9.75. Il GV 2.
1865, possibly by G A Dean. A
unified composition set back
from the sea front behind a
garden. 3 storeys, basement
and attics. Fawn-coloured brick
with stucco dressings, including
bracketed cornice and drafting
to basement and ground
storey. Mansard slate roof. 3
windows to each home, mainly
sashes but some altered. Tall
dormers, across Ist storey on
large scroll brackets, with
decorative iron railings from
which rise spiral columns
supporting cyma reversa
canopy, which projects forward
over the porches of composite
columns and pilasters
supporting an entablature,
which are paired except for the
2 houses at either end, and the
3 centre houses, which project
somewhat and have balconies
continuous with the porches (3
bays to each house). The end

21-
MAY -
1976

12-
SEP-
1975



High Street (40
including 40A)

High Street
(42)

High Street
(44)

houses also project somewhat,
have 5 windows and a central
porch. Both central and end
houses have a full attic storey
with its own cornice. Many
sections of balcony and some
porches are glazed in. West
Mansions and the upper
storeys of No 8 are stuccoed.
The chimneys vary. Many are
tall with bold bracketing, others
have moulded cornice. The
basement areas have railings
with pike finials. The rear has
half-landing extensions in
abutting pairs. East Mansions,
Heene Court Mansions, No 6 to
17 (consec.), and West
Mansions, Heene Terrace and
the Burlington Hotel,
Wordsworth Road, form a
group of which the Burlington
Hotel is of local interest only.
Listing NGR: TQ1390702197
1. HIGH STREET 5406 (East Il
Side) No 40 (including No 40A)
TQ 1502 NW 5/43 1l GV 2.
Early C19. 3 storeys. 1 window.
Curved front on 1st and 2nd
floors with 3 light windows in it.
Stuccoed. Long and short
quoins. Cornice. 6 panel
moulded door. Modern shop
front. Nos 40 to 44 (even)
including No 40A form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1508402816
HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (East Il
Side) No 42 TQ 1502 NW
5/131 Il GV 2. Probably mid
C19. 3 storeys. Stucco-fronted.
Slate roof. One window
(casements on 1st and 2nd
floors, the former wider, and a
sash bow window on the
ground floor). Nos 40 to 44
(even) including No 40A form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1508202821

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (East Il
Side) No 44 TQ 1502 SW
5/134 1l GV 2. Probably circa
1800 or before. Painted
cobbles. Tiled roof. 3 sash
windows with glazing bars (but
no top left one and the bottom
right being modern). Set back
somewhat from No 42. Nos 40
to 44 (even) including No 40A

21-
MAY -
1976

21-
MAY-
1976

21-
MAY -
1976



High Street
(79)

High Street
Tarring (1)

High Street
Tarring (11 and
13)

THE SWAN INN

THE GEORGE AND
DRAGON PUBLIC HOUSE

form a group. Listing NGR:

TQ1508202828

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (West |l 21-
Side) The Swan Inn TQ 1503 MAY -
19/211 11 2. Probably mainly 1976

C18 but considerably modified.
3 storeys. Rendered (except
rear north gable which is brick).
Slate roof in 2 steep spans, the
rear somewhat higher. East
Street front: 3 sash windows
with glazing bars (top middle
one blind). Parapet with
rudimentary pediment. Modern
extension towards street on
ground floor. West front: 4
irregularly-spaced sash
windows with glazing bars.
Listing NGR: TQ1500503034

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (West I 21-
Side) West Tarring The George MAY -
and Dragon Public House TQ 1976

1304 SW 15/189 1l GV 2.
Probably mid C18. 2 storeys.
Steep tiled roof (renewed).
Gable chimney at north end.
Moulded wooden eaves. Brick,
painted on front, red with grey
headers on north end, south
end rendered. Unevenly-
spaced windows. 3 widely-
spaced sash windows with
glazing bars (and one blocked)
on upper storey. 3 modern 2-
light sash windows, 1 probably
C19 sash window and 2 doors
on ground floor. The George
and Dragon Public House and
Nos 3 to 19 (odd), including No
13a (Chippers) form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1322004054

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (West I 21-
Side) West Tarring Nos 11 and MAY -
13 TQ 1304 SW 15/191 Il GV 1976

2. A pair, abutting No 15.
Probably early C19. 2 storeys.
Rendered. 3 unevenly-spaced
sash windows above, with
moulded architraves and
glazing bars. Below: on the left
a 4-panel door; across the rest
of the front a moulded cornice,
probably belonging to a shop of
the original date, with 4 slender
pilasters, the middle 2 framing
the doorway (4-panel door, top
2 glazed) and the left-hand one
having lost its lower portion.



High Street INCLUDING GARDEN
Tarring (12 and WALL TO SOUTH
14)

High Street CHIPPERS

Tarring (13A)

High Street -
Tarring (15 and
17)

The left window under the
cornice fixed, the right a sash
with glazing bars. Slate roof
with gable chimneys.
Unmoulded eaves. The George
and Dragon Public House and
Nos 3 to 19 (odd), including No
13a (Chippers) form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1324704095
HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (East I
Side) West Tarring Nos 12 and
14 including garden wall to
south TQ 1304 SW 15/196 I
GV 2. A pair, abutting No 16 on
the north. Probably circa 1800.
2 storeys. Coursed cobbles. 2-
span slate roof. 2 widely-
spaced sash windows (with
glazing bars) and left-hand 4-
panel door. Garden wall to
street extends from south end
to Parsonage Row. Part flint,
part brick. Nos 2 to 16 (even)
and Nos 20 to 32 (even) form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1325504080

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (West |l
Side) West Tarring No 13a
(Chippers) TQ1504 SW 15/192
Il GV 2. Abutting the rear of No
13, formerly probably united
with it, at right angles and
facing north. Probably C18. 2
storeys. Flint, with brick
dressings. Slope of tiled roof
extends only a very slight
distance, being apparently
modified to a flat roof. One
sash window with glazing bars
on upper storey, a door and 2
modern windows below. The
George and Dragon Public
House and Nos 3 to 19 (odd),
including No 13a (Chippers)
form a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1324604106

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (West |l
Side) West Tarring Nos 15 and
17 TQ 1304 SW 15/193 Il GV
2. Probably C18, but modified
in early C19. A pair, detached
at north end. Not symmetrical.
Rendered, but rear of No 15 of
flint and of No 17 brick; north
end flint and render. Roof
hipped at north end, slated on
front and tiled on rear. No 15
has 2 windows (left-hand sash

21-
MAY -
1976

21-
MAY -
1976

21-
MAY -
1976



High Street
Tarring (16)

High Street
Tarring (19)

High Street
Tarring (2 and
4)

PROVIDENCE COTTAGE

with glazing bars right-hand
and lower modern). No 17 has
2 windows (sashes with glazing
bars, but the lower left being a
door). No 15 has a 6-fielded-
panel central door (top 2 panels
glazed). No 17 has rear
extension of brick with mansard
roof. The George and Dragon
Public House and Nos 3 to 19
(odd), including No 13a
(Chippers) form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1325704111

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (East
Side) West Tarring No 16
(Providence Cottage) TQ 1504
SW 15/63 11 GV 2. C18. 2
storeys, 2 windows and 1
blocked. Red brick. Doorway in
frame. 6 panelled moulded
door, the top 2 panels cut away
and glazed. Nos 2 to 16 (even)
and Nos 20 to 32 (even) form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1394703892

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (West
Side) West Tarring No 19 TQ
1304 SW 15/61 20.10.75. 1l GV
2. Early C19. 2 storeys, 2
windows. Grey headers with
red brick dressings. Hipped
slate roof in 2 sections. Glazing
bars missing. Doorway with
pilasters and entablature. 6
panelled moulded door, the top
2 panels cut away and glazed.
Shop window inserted in the
left half of the ground floor. The
George and Dragon Public
House and Nos 3 to 19 (odd),
including No 13a (Chippers)
form a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1326204118

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (East
Side) West Tarring Nos 2 and 4
TQ 1304 SW 15/195 11 GV 2. At
the mouth of High Street
abutting Parsonage Row at the
north end, and comprising 3
cottages, the right-hand one
being a Post Office, the 2
others probably formerly shops.
C17 or C18 timber frame, much
modified. 2 storeys. Steepish
tiled roof with small gable in
centre and 2 tall chimneys at
south end. 3 windows in all, the
upper centre and right hand

21-
MAY -
1976
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21-
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High Street -
Tarring (20, 22
and 24)

High Street OLD CASTLE
Tarring (26)

High Street -
Tarring (28 and
30)

ones being sashes with glazing
bars. The right-hand cottage is
faced with brick (painted) and
has projecting eaves. The other
2 have a coved jetty to the
upper storey, which is tile-hung.
The south is tile-hung to the
gable, otherwise roughcast. It
has 2 small casements above,
one modern window at left side
below. Nos 2 to 16 (even) and
Nos 20 to 32 (even) form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1323504048

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (East Il
Side) West Tarring Nos 20 to
24 (even) TQ 1304 SW 15/64 11
GV 2. 3 early C19 cottages. 2
storeys, 5 windows in all.
Painted brick. Small cornice
with modillions below eaves.
Slate roof. No 20 has a
doorway with pilasters and
entablature and 6 panelled
moulded door. No 22 has a
small early C19 shop window
with small square panes. Nos 2
to 16 (even) and Nos 20 to 32
(even) form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1327604106

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (East Il
Side) West Tarring No 26 (Old
Castle) TQ 1304 SW 15/65 Il
GV 2 C18. 2 storeys, 3
windows. Stuccoed. Eaves
cornice. Hipped slate roof,
originally Horsham stone
slates. Casement windows on
1st floor, sash windows below.
Nos 2 to 16 (even) and Nos 20
to 32 (even) form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1328404108
The entry for: HIGH STREET 1. 1l
5406 (East Side) West Tarring
TQ 1304 SW 15/66 No 30 II
G.V. 2. Pair of probably C17
cottages, now united. 2 storeys.
Stuccoed. 3 windows, mixed
casement and sash. Roof partly
Horsham stone slated, mainly
tiled. Tall brick stack and gable
one. Possibly timber-framed
within. Nos 2 to 16 (even), Nos
20 to 26 (even), and Nos 30
and 32 form a group Shall be
amended to read: 1. 5406
HIGH STREET (East Side)
West Tarring TQ 10 SW Nos

21-
MAY -
1976

21-
MAY -
1976

21-
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1976



28 and 30 SP/457 1l 2. House,
now two cottages, C16, altered.
Stucco over timber frame,
some brick and cobble. Plain
tile roofs. Two storeys. The
doors flank the windows, with
that of No 28 under the catslide
roof which extends the hip at
this end. Modern part-glazed
doors. Each cottage has one
window per floor, all recent.
That to ground floor of No 30 is
fixed with glazing bars, the
remainder are casements, that
to ground floor of No 30 in a
segmental-arched surround.
One gable chimney. At rear of
No 30, a wall-plate is exposed
above the first floor window.
Inside No 28 are moulded
beams to ground floor, a
moulded Tudor-arched wooden
doorway, and a large fireplace,
from which the stack has been
removed above roof level.
Down braces in the party wall
and simple crown post roof.
Nos 2 to 16 (even), Nos 20 to
32 (even) form a group ----------
------------------ 1. 5406 HIGH
STREET (East Side) West
Tarring TQ 1304 SW 15/197
No 30 Il GV 2. Probably C17
cottage, with stuccoed front. 2
storeys. One window,
casement above, sash below.
Left-hand door. Hipped tiled
roof. Gable chimney. Possibly
timber-framed within. Nos 2 to
16 (even) and Nos 20 to 32
(even) form a group. In the
above entries, Nos 28 and 30
High Street, West Tarring shall
be amended to read No 30 and
the entry shall now read: --------
--------------------- 1. 5406 HIGH
STREET (east side) Side) West
Tarring No 28 TQ 1304 SV
15/66 Il GV 2. C17 cottage with
stuccoed front. 2 storeys. 2
windows. Horsham stone slate
roof on south side, the
remainder red tiled, Tall brick
chimney. Nos 2 to 16 (even)
and Nos 20 to 32 (even) form a

o T ——



High Street
Tarring (3 and
5)

High Street
Tarring (32)

High Street
Tarring (38 and
40)

MALTHOUSE COTTAGE
AND No.5

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (East
Side) West Tarring No 30 TQ
1504 SV 15/197 1l GV 2.
Probably C17 cottage, with
stuccoed front. 2 storeys. One
window, casement above, sash
below. Left-hand door. Hipped
tiled roof. Gable chimney.
Possibly timber-framed within.
Nos 2 to 16 (even) and Nos 20
to 32 (even) form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1329404120
HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (West
Side) West Tarring No 3
(Malthouse Cottage) and No 5
TQ 1304 SW 15/60 30.7.75. lI
GV 2. One roof span. C17. 2
storeys, 3 windows each. No 3,
cobbles, ground floor cemented
and cement surrounds to 1st
floor windows; the ground floor
windows enlarged. No 5, flints
with red brick dressings.
Ground floor of No 5 made into
a shed or garage. Lower
portion of roof Horsham stone
slates, the upper portion
replaced with red tiles. The
George and Dragon Public
House and Nos 3 to 19 (odd),
including No 13a (Chippers)
form a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1322504077

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (East
Side) West Tarring No 32 TQ
1304 SW 15/198 Il GV 2.
Probably C18. 2 storeys.
Rendered. 2 sash windows
(and a further one between, on
ground floor). Right-hand door
of stable type, with 2 fielded
panels below and 4 above (the
top 2 glazed). Left-hand gable
chimney and central ridge
chimney. Steep-pitched tile
roof. 2 unequal wings at rear
with similar roofs. Nos 2 to 16
(even) and Nos 20 to 32 (even)
form a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1329704132

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (East
Side) West Tarring Nos 38 and
40 TQ 1304 SW 15/199 1l 2. An
L-shaped building, now 2
houses; perhaps of the C16 but
considerably altered. 2 storeys
with long, steep, uneven tile

30-
JUL-
1975
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High Street THE HOLLIES

Tarring (42)

High Street INCLUDING BECKETS
Tarring (6to 10 COTTAGE
even)

roof hipped to south. No 38 is
the longer range, parallel to the
road but set back from it. Upper
front and left half of south end
tile-hung; the lower part
rendered on front and right-
hand part of south end; the rear
and lower right-hand part of the
south end being flint with brick
dressings. Irregular
fenestration. 3 windows above,
the left-hand one a dormer; and
2 windows below, together with
2 doors. Large mid-ridge
chimney, above open hearth.
Timber frame exposed inside:
braced kingpost type of roof.
No 40 occupies most of the
short range, which extends
forward at the left end of the
longer range. Faced with flints
except gable front and lower
part of inner return side, which
are rendered and painted.
External chimney with offset to
north. One window on gable
front and right-hand doorway.
All windows of both houses are
modern casements. Listing
NGR: TQ1332004154

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (East Il 11-
Side) West Tarring No 42 (The OCT-
Hollies) TQ 1304 SW 15/67 1949

11.10.49. 1l 2. C18. 2 storeys, 3
windows. Cobbles with red
brick dressings. Eaves cornice.
Round-headed doorway in
frame. L shaped building
behind. Listing NGR:

TQ1332304172

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (East [* 11-
Side) West Tarring Nos 6 to 10 OCT-
(even) (Parsonage Row, 1949

including Beckets Cottage) TQ
1304 SW 15/62 11.10.49. II*
GV 2. C15. Originally one
house, now 3 cottages
belonging to the Sussex
Archaeological Trust, of which
the centre one is a museum. 2
storeys, 1 window each. Timber
framed and plaster. Casement
windows. Horsham stone slate
roof. Gable to No 8 with
scalloped bargeboard. 1st floor
of Nos 8 and 10 overhangs on
brackets. No 6 has a tie beam
under eaves with a curved



High Street
Tarring (7 and
9)

Humphrys
Road

llex Way

BANNER HOUSE AND
BANNER COTTGE

HUMPHRYS ALMSHOUSES
(7 and 8)

GORING HALL

beam supporting it, and slightly
projecting windows on both
floors. Nos 2 to 16 (even) and
Nos 20 to 32 (even) form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1324204061

HIGH STREET 1. 5406 (West |l
Side) West Tarring Nos 7
(Banner House) and 9 (Banner
Cottage) TQ 1504 SW 15/190 Il
GV 2. A pair of cottages.
Timber-framed, of C17 or
earlier, with probably C18
rendered facing of considerable
thickness. 2 storeys. Steep
slated roof with very small
goblets at each hip. Timbers
exposed on upper part of north
end. 4 modern casement
windows and neo-Georgian (or
renewed) doorcase to No 7. A
parallel range to the rear:
probably C18 and slightly taller.
Hipped tiled roof. Cobble and
brick. The George and Dragon
Public House and Nos 3 to 19
(odd), including No 13a
(Chippers) form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1324104088
HUMPHRYS ROAD 1. 5406 I
(South Side) Nos 7 and 8
Humphrys Almshouses TQ
1402 NE 3/109 1l 2. The only
remaining portion of Humphrys
Almshouses. A detached pair
on the corner with Portland
Road. Mid C19. 2 storeys.
Knapped flint with stone
dressings. 2 string courses
between storeys. Steep tiled
roof with cresting. Gable
chimneys. 3 windows. Upper
side ones: 3-light with mullions.
Upper centre one: single-light.
Lower ones: 3-light with
mullions and ousped heads
above tops of lights. Large
gabled porch of open
timberwork above flint walls.
Lean-to extension at rear. Low
flint boundary wall. Listing
NGR: TQ1469802743
WORTHING ILEX WAY TQ 10 I 17-
SW 24/228 Goring Hall Il FEB-
School, formerly house, c1889 1988
in Queen Anne style, a replica

of the earlier house on the site

by Charles Barry which was

21-
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llex Way

llex Way

WALL TO FORMER
ORCHARD NORTH OF
GORING HALL

FORMER STABLES OF
GORING HALL

burnt down and identical except
that the earlier house was
rendered. Built in red brick in
Flemish bond. Entrance front of
2 storeys 7 windows. Panelled
parapet and cement band. 12
pane sashes with rubbed brick
voussoirs and cornices above
and wooden jalousies. Closed
in porch with round-headed
arch with 8 double panelled
door with iron fanlight. Garden
front has 7 windows, including
3 in central curved bow through
both storeys. 2 modern attic
windows inserted on left hand
side. C20 1 storey brick and
cement classroom to left hand
side replacing greenhouse.
Entrance hall has an elaborate
wooden fireplace dated 1889
with the initial L and a tiled
surround. 6 panelled doors.
Dado panelling with Gothic
designs and Jacobean style
well staircase. Round-headed
staircase window with shield of
Bowes-Lyon family and motto
"IN TE DOMINE SPERAVI".
Lounge has wooden fireplace
of early C18 design with the
inscription: "HAE AEDES
AEDIFICATAE AD 1840
INCENDIO DIRUTAE MON
AUG 1888. RESTITUTAE ET
EMENDATAE AD 1888-89.
Iron fireback with gladiator
designs. Dining Room has
Jacobean type ceiling with
central plasterwork design and
wooden Jacobean- style
fireplace with tiled surround
and iron fireback. The house
was built for the Lyon family.
Originally it had a tower which
has since been demolished.
Listing NGR: TQ1059902462
ILEX WAY 1. 5406 (South
Side) Goring-by-Sea Wall to
former orchard north of Goring
Hall TQ 10 SW 24/230 11 2.
Probably C18. Forming a
rectangle. Brick to north and
south, flint and brick to east
and west. Listing NGR:
TQ1060402543

ILEX WAY 1. 5406 (South
Side) Goring-by-Sea Former

21-
MAY -
1976

21-
MAY -



Jefferies Lane

Jefferies Lane

SEA COURT

JEFFERIES HOUSE

Stables of Goring Hall TQ 10 1976
SW 24/229 11 2. Probably circa
1830. 3-sided courtyard, with
one-storey coach-house wings
either side and 2-storey range
at rear with plain arch through
centre. Cobbles with brick
dressings. Slate roofs over
brick modillion cornice, formed
into pediments on gables of
coach-house wings (with
roundels enclosed) and over
arch of main block, which also
has semi-circular windows on
the ground floor each side and
extensions beyond coach-
house wings. Listing NGR:

TQ1059402519

JEFFERIES LANE 1. 5406 Il 21-
(South Side) Goring-by-Sea MAY -
Sea Court TQ 10 SW 24/234 1i 1976

2. C18 and earlier, but much
modified. A detached house,
formerly the Vicarage of Goring
Church. 2 storeys. North fronts
2 gables. 3 irregular sash
windows. Left-hand door.
Single-storey wing runs forward
at right end, probably
incorporating pre-C18 work.
Flint and brick, with slate roof.
South front: a range of regular
design, probably early to mid
C19, perhaps replacing a
previous main block. Painted
cobbles. Slate roof. Gable
chimneys. A plain balcony on
iron posts across upper storey.
3 french windows, each flanked
by pairs of smaller casement
windows, 11 in all. Parts of
ground floor interior of house
are at lower level and probably
pre-C18. Listing NGR:

TQ1118602450

JEFFERIES LANE 1. 5406 I 21-
(South Side) Goring-by-Sea MAY -
Jefferies House TQ 10 SW 1976

24/233 1l 2. Richard Jefferies,
naturalist and writer, lived here
from 1886 and died here the
following year. The house is
circa 1880. A detached, 2-
storey building without
architectural pretention, but
with character. Main front faces
south, onto garden; large flints
and brick dressings. 3



Lansdowne
Road

Lansdowne
Road

Little High
Street (83)

Littlehampton
Road

ST BOTOLPH'S CHURCH

RUINED PORTION OF
FORMER ST BOTOLPH'S
CHURCH, EAST OF
PRESENT CHURCH

THE HOLLIES

NORTH BARN (RANGE OF
OUTBUILDINGS ON EAST

windows, the central one a
camber-headed casement, the
side ones 5-light bay windows
with sashes, having decorated
tiles between storeys and in
gables above. Central door of 5
moulded, fielded panels. North
street front: under lean-to pitch
of main span (all slated, with
wooden finials); 3 casement
windows; central door. North
front and sides are of deep-set
flints. Listing NGR:
TQ1123602466

LANSDOWNE ROAD 1.5406 I
(North Side) St Botolph's
Church TQ 1302 14/186 C 2.
1873. Early English in style.
Flint with stone dressings.
Steep slate roofs with tile
cresting. Chancel, nave, lean-to
north aisle, wider south aisle
under its own roof-ridge, with
wide transept-chapel at one
end and tower with short
shingled spire over porch at the
other end. Interior of red and
fawn brick and stone dressings.
Listing NGR: TQ1375502811
LANSDOWNE ROAD 1. 5406 I
(North Side) Ruined portion of
former St Botolph's Church,
east of present Church TQ
1302 14/187 1l 2. Said to be
C13 and earlier. Somewhat
scanty and much weathered
remains of the east end of the
former church. Listing NGR:
TQ1377702820

LITTLE HIGH STREET 1. 5406 I
(North Side) No 83 (The
Hollies) TQ 1503 19/212 11 2. A
detached house of before
1815, standing prominently at
the east end of the street, at
the head of High Street. Pale
fawn-coloured brick. Hipped
slate roof. 2 storeys. 3 arches
incised in facade, enclosing 3
sash windows with glazing
bars. 6-panel door within
probably Victorian wooden
porch, with carved openwork
gable projecting on brackets.
Listing NGR: TQ1502403068
LITTLEHAMPTON ROAD 1. Il
5406 (North Side) North Barn

21-
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Littlehampton
Road

Liverpool
Terrace (1 to
12 consec.)

SIDE OF YARD)

NORTH BARN (MAIN
BLOCK) INCLUDING WALL
ACROSS THE SOUTH,
BOUNDING THE ROAD

(range of outbuildings on east 1975
side of yard) TQ 1003 9/164

7.5.75. 1l 2. Slightly detached

and considerably lower shed

making up the group round the

yard; of the same build and

evidently the same date, being

open on the west side, towards

the yard, supported by a row of

posts. Listing NGR:

TQ1027603723

LITTLEHAMPTON ROAD 1. Il 07-
5406 (North Side) North Barn MAY -
(Main block) including wall 1975

across the south, bounding the
road TQ 1003 9/163 7.5.75.
2. Probably early C19. Forming
a yard (with the separate shed
on the east side), the main
block is L-shaped, with a very
large barn forming the rear,
north side of the yard, a long
shed extending from it along
the west side, the south side
being closed by a flint wall with
stone coping. Well-built in
cobbles, with brick dressings.
Slate roof of even height over
both wings. Double full-height
doors to centre of barn, which
has queen-post type of roof.
The shed is open below, on the
yard side, weather-boarded
above with casement windows.
Listing NGR: TQ1024803712

LIVERPOOL TERRACE 1. I 11-
5406 Nos 1 to 12 (consec.) TQ OCT-
1402 NE 3/20 TQ 1402 SE 1949

4/20 11.10.49. 1l GV 2. 1830-
1835. Possibly designed by
Amon Henry Wilds of Brighton,
but Edward Snewin's
"Glimpses of Old Worthing"
gives the Architect as Henry
Cotton. 4 storeys and
basement with area (an extra
storey added to Nos 8 and 10),
4 windows each. Stuccoed, the
ground floor rusticated. Curved
bay of 3 windows each on all
floors including the basement.
Cornice and parapet.
Stringcourse above 1st floor.
Iron balconies on 1st floor
(replaced at Nos 8, 11 and 12).
Instead of an iron balcony No
10 has a narthex or colonnade
of 5 large Doric columns over



Marine Parade

Marine Parade

BURLINGTON HOTEL

THE LIDO

the pavement with a wide
stuccoed balcony above having
a balustrade supporting urns.
Nearly all glazing bars intact.
Rectangular fanlights to
doorways and 8 panelled
moulded doors. Railings to
basement areas and front
steps, with finials in form of
spears impaling crescents. Nos
1to 12 (consec.) form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1477102551

MARINE PARADE I|. 5406 Il 19-
Burlington Hotel TQ 1402 SW AUG-
2/92 11 2. 1865. Prominent 1982

corner building in Italianate
style 3 storeys and attics
stuccoed. Slate mansard roof
with 2 tiers of dormers. Marine
Parade elevation has 3 bays.
Bracket eaves cornice and
bands between floors. 2nd floor
windows are sashes with
verticals only and cornices
above. 1st floor has 3 round
headed windows and tented
canopy. Burnt out glazed
extension to ground floor.
Elevation to Road has similar
windows but 3 elevation cast
iron balconies at 1st floor level
and central round-headed
entrance with half columns with
caryatids supporting the central
balcony. Ground floor
rusticated. Further 2 bay
extension to left in matching
style with double round headed
windows with hood mouldings.
Listing NGR: TQ1408902202

MARINE PARADE 1. 5406 The |l 08-
Lido TQ 1402 SE 4/271 11 2. AUG-
G.V. Band enclosure, now 1985

bathing pools 1925. By
Adshead and Ramsey.
Dragged render to walls, metal
roofs. Enclosure of depressed
horseshoe shape projecting
seaward from the Parade.
Parallel to the Parade is a
glazed wall with fluted shafts
supporting the top beam,
embellished with imbricated
tenops. This is terminated by
rectangular pavillions with
heavily swept roofs. A
conventional classical cornice
is common to the front. Plainer



Marine Parade

THE DOME CINEMA

curved walls embrace the
changing rooms (to the east)
and restaurant (to the west) to
either side of the bandstand.
This has short flank walls
crowned by baskets of fruit and
flowers and with applied Greek
theatrical masks, and is treated
as an open temple of oval plan.
The low conical roof is
supported by slim paired
columns of an attenuated
Tower of the Winds type. Flat
ceiling with decorative
plasterwork. A witty and
attractive building which forms
a foil to the same architects'
Pier Pavilion to which itis a
close neighbour. Listing NGR:

TQ1474702310

TQ 1502 WORTHING MARINE II* 31-
PARADE (north side) MAY -
753/5/272 The Dome Cinema 1989

31.5.89 GV II* Cinema and
bingo hall, originally a multi-
purpose kursaal. 1911, by
Theophilus Arthur Allen for Carl
Adolf Seebold, at a cost of
£4,000. Remodelled 1921 by R
Kirksby Bowes at cost of
?8,000. Brick, stuccoed at front,
otherwise pebble-dashed,;
dome supported by steel posts.
Plain tile roof to front range;
otherwise Welsh slate, rear
ranges with crested ridge tiles
(part removed). Two-storey,
five-bay front range, the ground
floor projecting and having
shops flanking entrance
arcade. Above and behind this
is the original cinema of 1911,
later a ballroom and restaurant
and now (in 1996) a bingo hall;
in dome over front is former
billiard room. To rear is the
thirteen-bay deep Coronation
Hall, originally used principally
as a roller skating rink, concert
hall and ballroom; in continuous
use as cinema since 1921.
Entrance elevation restored in
1995. Mid-C19 shop fronts
flank bowed entrance to
arcade, the bow supported by
columns and formerly with
gates; later entrance to first
floor to left of bow; parapet.



First floor has round-arched
windows with glazing bars set
between pilasters and linked by
impost string. Tower has angle
pilasters, platt band, round-
arched six-pane windows,
octagonal dome and cupola.
Right return: two-storey section
has round-arched windows on
ground floor with radial glazing
bars to fanlights and small-
pane casements; three-light
small-pane casement windows
to first floor. Similar windows to
one-storey section; some
louvred; two ridge louvres. Left
return: similar but without the
round-arched windows. The
interior survives remarkably
complete and is full of interest.
Entrance arcade has patterned
terrazzo floor, incorporating
builder's name plate; glazed
green tile dado; former shop
doors and windows (blocked);
glazed double door on left side
with small panes originally
giving access to first floor; and
compartmental ceiling with
decorative plasterwork. At rear
lies the main entrance, which
has arched doorway and side
lights, the glazed doors with
central roundels and glazing
bars, all dating from 1921.
Entrance foyer originally an
open-air theatre with small
balcony and a stage set under
semi-dome; the present interior
is a complete and lavish
remodelling of 1921. Similar
doors to those at entrance
serve auditorium, and are set in
the pine partitioning which
separate the former
refreshment room (on left) and
cloakroom (on right); these
have small pane glazing with
coloured glass lettering over
doors. Main foyer area
dominated by large polygonal
paybox of 1921, itself a rare
feature, with separate smaller
kiosk in side passage serving
cheap seats in front stalls. All
areas with patterned cornices
and ceilings. Enriched window
architraves, light roundels,



Marine Parade

THE PIER (INCLUDING

brass bannistered stairs up to
doorways leading into main
auditorium set between etched
side mirrors with cameos,
swags and sconces. The main
auditorium or Coronation Hall
retains original balcony to sides
with decorative metal
balustrade. Original stage with
some decoration survives
behind later proscenium; this
itself obscured behind wide
screen installed in 1955 by
Goldsmith and Pennells,
architects. Viewing boxes at
rear now projector and rewind
rooms, richly decorated and
with cupids and hearts.
Decorative ceiling of 1921 and
comparable with that in
entrance hall; it includes raised
semi-domes masking original
ventilation system. Shallow
raked floor and fixed seating
installed in 1921, some seats
still the originals and in their
original position. The first floor
bingo hall opened as a cinema
in October 1911 and in 1921
became a ballroom. It has a
decorative ceiling, partly
concealed, and light bosses.
The former restaurant
overlooking the sea has a more
decorative compartmented
ceiling and columns. The Dome
is of dual interest as a rare
surviving kursaal or multi-
purpose hall, with the original
plan of a roller skating rink in
the main hall. Save for the
balcony front, the decoration all
dates from the conversion of
this hall to a cinema in 1921,
and this is both remarkably
elaborate and exceptionally
complete. The Dome is one of
the best five early cinemas to
survive in England, and the
grading reflects both its
architectural and historical
interest. Sources Original plans
from the cinema and local
authority The Worthing
Gazette, 19 April 1911 and 26
July 1921 Listing NGR:
TQ1506002486

In the entry for MARINE Il 30-



THE PIERFOOT PAVILION
AND THE PIERHEAD
PAVILION)

PARADE The Pier TQ 1402 SE
4/270 TQ 1502 SW 6/270 The
address shall be amended to
read MARINE PARADE TQ
1402 SE 4/270 The Pier
(including the Pierfoot Pavilion
TQ 1502 SW 6/270 and the
Pierhead Pavilion) The
description should be amended
to read Originally 1860-62.
Designed by Robert Rawlinson
for J Cliff of Bradford. 960 ft
long. The neck was widened
from 15 ft to 30 ft in 1887-9 and
the pierhead enlarged to 105 ft.
Pier consists of 24 spans of
longitudinal lattice girders
supported by cast iron trestles
and carrying timber joists for
the wooden decking.
'‘Shoreward or Pierfoot Pavilion
1926. Stucco to walls, metal
clad roofs. Consists of a
polygonal hall with an oval
vestibule on the shoreside, and
two square side pavilions
joined to it by concave
guadrant pilastrades. The
vestibule is of 5 bays
externally, separated by
engaged Corinthian columns
over which the entablature
breaks. Festooned frieze.
Central three bays have glazed
double doors with mask
keystones. Here the domed
roof has 3 glazed oculus
dormers, while the domical
main roof has bullseye
dormers. Delicate iron cresting
in the manner of a balustrade.
The main roof has a low
clerestory with lattice glazing. A
plainer cornice carries round
the hall. The lower side
pavilions have strongly swept
mansard roofs with round
headed dormers, plain
entablatures over Doric
pilasters. The pier entrances, in
the quadrants, are flanked by
engaged Corinthian columns.
The detail , a subtle and festive
neo-brec, is carried through
into the two domed interiors.
The Pierhead Pavilion was
designed in 1935 by the
Borough Architect. It is a

JUL-
1975



handsome and largely
unaltered example of the
Nautical Style. The shape is a
rectangle with rounded ends,
with terraces wrapped around a
small concert hall. Frame
construction clad in metal faced
Plymax, using almost
continuous glazing of the
Crittall type. Asphalt terraces
and roofing. Four bay hall with
simple proscenium arch
surmounted by radiating
design. From the outside the
main effect is strongly
horizontal, created by the
projecting decks and cornices.
Good mahogany doors which
retain some frosted glass
panels with wave patterns.
Midway Amusement Arcade,
1959, not of special interest on
current criteria . --------------------
---------------- 1. MARINE
PARADE 5406 The Pier TQ
1402 SE 4/270 TQ 1502 SW
6/270 30.7.75 Il 2. Originally
1860-62. maimed by Robert
Rawlinson for J ClIiff of
Bradford. 960 ft long. The neck
was widened from 15 ft to 30 ft
in 1887-9 and the pierhead
enlarged to 105 ft. Pier consists
of 24 spans of longitudinal
lattice girders supported by
cast iron trestles end carrying
timber joists for the wooden
decking. Present buildings
(shoreward pavilion, 1926;
midway amusement arcade,
1959; and pierhead pavilion,
1935) not of listable interest on
current criteria. Owned by local
authority. In the descriptive
noted for the above entry, the
sentence from 'Present
buildings ... current criteria.’
(lines 4-6) should be amended
to read: 'Present buildings are
C20 and not of special interest
on current criteria." ----------------
-------- MARINE PARADE 1.
5406 The Pier TQ 1402 SE
4/270 TQ 1502 SW 6/270
30.7.75. 1l 2. originally 1860-62.
Designed by Robert Rawlinson
for J Cliff of Bradford. 960 ft



Marine Parade
(74)

Marine Parade
(75 and 76)

Marine Parade
(77to 79
consec.)

long. The neck was widened
from 15 ft to 30 ft in 1887-9 and
the pierhead enlarged to 105 ft.
Pier consists of 24 spans of
longitudinal lattice girders
supported by cast iron trestles
and carrying timber joists for
the wooden decking. Present
buildings (shoreward pavilion,
1926; midway amusement
arcade, 1959; and pierhead
pavilion, 1935) not of listable
interest on current criteria.
Owned by local authority.
Listing NGR: TQ1498002293
MARINE PARADE 1. 5406 No I
74 TQ 1402 SE 4/5 11.10.49. I
GV 2. Early C19. 4 storeys and
attic. 2 windows. Stuccoed.
Curved bay of 2 windows on all
floors except attic. Pilasters at
the sides from 2nd to 3rd floors.
Cornice and parapet.
Mansarded roof with 1 dormer.
Wooden balcony with hood on
1st floor. Nos 74 to 79
(consec.) form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1458102334

MARINE PARADE 1. 5406 Nos I
75 and 76 TQ 1402 SE 4/6
11.10.49. 1l GV 2. Early C19. 4
storeys and basement. 2
windows each. Stuccoed.
Cornice and parapet. Wooden
balcony with hood on Ist floor.
No 75 has a flat front with long
and short quoins. No 76 has a
curved front with fluted pilasters
from the Ist to 3rd floors.
Glazing bars missing in both.
Doorway of No 75 has been
modernised since last survey,
that of No 76 at the side in New
Street has lost its Doric
columns and hood supported
by large consoles, but retains
grooved reveal to arch. Nos 74
to 79 (consec.) form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1458102334
MARINE PARADE 1. 5406 Nos I
77 to 79 (consec.) TQ 1402 SE
4/7 11.10.49. 11 GV 2. Early
C19. 4 storeys. Terrace of 3
houses. 8 windows in all.
Stuccoed, ground floor of Nos
78-79 rusticated. Curved fronts
of 2 windows each. Cornice
and parapet. Glazing bars

11-
OCT-
1949

11-
OCT-
1949

11-
OCT-
1949



Marine Parade
(83)

Marine Place

Montague
Place (10)

(INCLUDING RAILINGS)

BEDFORD COTTAGE

intact. No 77 has a slightly
lower facade than Nos 78 and
79, 2 windows only, long and
short quoins, no balcony, and
one ground floor window made
into a door. Nos 78 and 79 are
a pair, slightly larger, and have
3 windows each. Since last
survey they have lost wooden
balconies on the 1st floor with
hoods. Stringcourses above 1st
and 2nd floors. Nos 74 to 79
(consec.) form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1454402334

MARINE PARADE 1. 5406 No
83 (including area railings) TQ
1402 SW 2/98 Il 2. Early C19. 3
storeys and basement. Corner
site. Main front: 2 sash
windows. Right-hand door.
Wooden balcony across 1st
storey. East front (to West
Buildings): 3 sash windows (top
middle one blind). Central
round-headed doorway with
coved voussoir surround. Short
railing to area and door steps,
with fleur-de-lys finials. Listing
NGR: TQ1429202243

The following building shall be
added to the list; WORTHING
MARINE PLACE TQ 15 02 SW
(east side) 6/273 Bedford
Cottage GV Il House. Circa
1800, altered. Coursed
rubblestone with yellow and red
brick dressings; Welsh slate
roof. 2 storeys with attic, 2
bays. Front has yellow- brick
quoins, quoined surrounds and
arches to opening and stepped
dentilled eaves. Doorway on
left with narrow window above,
a wider window to right on each
floor, all openings boarded up.
Flat-roofed, boarded-up,
dormer. Yellow-brick gable
stack to right. Rear: red brick
qguoins and surrounds, doorway
on right; a large window to left
on each floor, now with C20
windows, the ground-floor
window with cemented lintel
and that above altered; eaves
rebuilt late C20. Listing NGR:
TQ1501102464

MONTAGUE PLACE 1. 5406
(West Side) No 10 TQ 1402 SE

Il 21-
MAY -
1976

I 04-
APR-
1989

Il 21-
MAY -



4/154 11 GV 2. 1802-05, but 1976
considerably altered. Originally
evidently uniform with Nos 12-
14. 4 storeys. Stuccoed.
Modillioned cornice with bow.
Full-height 3-light sash window.
Single right-hand sash window
(except 1st floor), with door
below, recessed under arch,
within modern fluted pilaster
strips, and up 5 steps, the 2
lowest having cast iron railings
with decorated balusters.
Former 1st floor balcony and
canopy missing. Nos 10 to 14
(consec.) form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1479802395

Montague - MONTAGUE PLACE 1. 5406 Il 11-
Place (11to 14 (West Side) - No 11 11.10.49. OCT-
consec) Nos 12 and 13 TQ 1402 SE 1949

4/12 - No 14 11 GV 2. 1802-
1805. 4 storeys (Nos 11 and 12
with attic and Nos 12 and 13
with semi-basement).
Stuccoed. Curved fronts with
window of 3 lights. Nos 11 and
12 have one additional window
over the door. Cornice with
modillions. No 14 has a parapet
and no modillions. Iron
balconies on 1st floor (that from
No 14 missing). Nos 12 and 14
formerly had hoods to these
balconies. Round-headed
doorways. Glazing bars intact
except on the ground floor.
Modern shop fronts to Nos 11
and 14. No 12 has no shop
front and therefore is as
designed. The glazing bars are
intact even on the ground floor.
Hooded balcony with thin
wooden columns supporting
the hood. Recessed round-
headed doorway up 5 steps
with semi-circular fanlight and 6
panel moulded door, the top
panels cut away and glazed.
No 13 has lost some of its
glazing bars on ground floor
and has had this window
slightly enlarged downwards.
Its balcony has no hood. The
doorway is similar and the door
intact. Nos 10 to 14 (consec.)
form a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1479502398

Montague VICTORIA INN MONTAGUE STREET 1. 5406 I 21-



Street (103)

Montague
Street (22)

Montague
Street (80)

BUCKINGHAM ARMS
PUBLIC HOUSE

(South Side) Victoria Inn TQ MAY -
1402 SE 4/151 11 2. 1976
Remodelled early C19 (and
again late C19) but perhaps
C17 in origin. Possibly timber
framed. 2 storeys and attic.
North front, on Montague
Street: 2 sash windows of
Victorian type below dentilled
cornice. 4-light casement
window in gable, which has
shouldered parapet. 2-storey
extension to east, with parapet
and flat roof. West front: one
sash window matching those of
north front. Whole ground
storey frontage remodelled with
glazed tiles and Victorian
sashes. Stucco above. Steep
pitched slate roof. Interior has
ground floor lower than street
level. The building leans slightly
to the north. Listing NGR:

TQ1461602421

MONTAGUE STREET 1. 5406 I 21-
(North Side) No 22 TQ 1402 MAY -
SE 4/150 11 2. Early C19. 3 1976

storeys. Stucco-fronted. 4
equally-spaced lonic pilasters
with vigorous finely moulded
capitals on upper storeys, the
bases masked by the top of the
modern shopfront on the
ground floor. 3 sash windows
(those of the top floor with
glazing bars). Parapet above
cornice of the entablature. 2-
span tiled roof. Listing NGR:

TQ1485702481

MONTAGUE STREET 1. 5406 I 21-
(Worth Side) Buckingham Arms MAY -
Public House TQ 1402 SE 1976

4/149 Il 2. Probably circa 1800
or earlier, but much modified. 2
storeys and attics. Stuccoed.
M-form roof, with slates, coping
to gables and parapet to street
on south, over narrow frontage.
One sash window with glazing
bars. Longer front to
Buckingham Road on the east.
4 sash windows with glazing
bars (but the 2 left ones blind).
4 casement windows in attic. 2-
storey extension to north.
Ground floor corner remodelled
in the Victorian period. 6
pilasters, fluted in upper



sections, paired at ends and to
bevelled corner doorway.
Listing NGR: TQ1460202437




Address N-Z

Listed Buildings in Worthing : Address N-Z

Address

Name

Description

Grade

Listing
Date

North Street
(43)

NORTH STREET 1. 5406
(North Side) No 43 TQ 1403
17/209 TQ 1503 19/209 I 2.
Late C18 or circa 1800. 2
storeys. Mansard roof; all
pitches except upper rear
(which is slated) of old tiles.
Gable chimneys. Rear is of
flint with brick quoins, but
front is much modified,
probably in the early C20. 2-
storeyed bow windows, with
imitation timbering to the
gable heads, either side of
central doorway with possibly
mid C19 straight hood above
(on classical brackets).
Listing NGR: TQ1491702982

21-
MAY -
1976

Park
Crescent

LODGES AND GATEWAY TO
PARK CRESCENT

PARK CRESCENT 1. 5406
Lodges and gateway to Park
Crescent (formerly listed as
The Lodge and Gateway) TQ
1402 NW 1/26A 11.10.49. II*
GV 2. Gateway of 3 caryatid
arches, the central one for
carriages, the side ones for
pedestrians. Pair of lodges
linked to gate by short
sections of wall, with cornice,
which is continued round
one-storey lodges and over
round-headed window in
each. Hipped slate roofs.
Nos 1 to 14 (consec.) and
the gateway and lodges form
a group with Beechwood
Hall. Listing NGR:
TQ1436702811

I

11-
OCT-
1949

Park
Crescent

BEECHWOOD HALL

PARK CRESCENT 1. 5406
Beechwood Hall TQ 1402
NW 1/27 11.10.49. 1l GV 2.
Private Hotel. This is
approached from Wykeham
Road but it was actually built
as part of Park Crescent as
North and South Swiss
Cottages, presumably at the
same date and by the same
architect. 2 storeys, attic and
basement. Faced with
roughcast. Red tiled roof.
The roof sweeps right down

11-
OCT-
1949




to the ground floor on south
side and forms a veranda
with square trellised wooden
columns and cornice.
Window with oriental shaped
lights copied from the
Pavilion, Brighton. Projecting
porches on east front (the
main centre one modern)with
rustic wooden balconies
above them and an outside
staircase to one of them.
Hipped gables with scalloped
bargeboards. Dormer
windows on 2nd floor
probably added. One pointed
turret. Chimneys with twisted
or zig-zag ornamentation.
Nos 1 to 14 (consec.) and
the gateway and lodges form
a group with Beechwood
Hall. Listing NGR:
TQ1422302838

Park
Crescent (1
to 14
consec.)

PARK CRESCENT 1. 5406
Nos 1 to 14 (consec.) TQ
1402 NW 1/26 11.10.49. II*
GV 2. 1829-1830. Amon
Henry Wilds Architect. 3
storeys. 3 windows each.
Stuccoed. The houses are
built in 3s. Each centre
house projects with pilasters
from ground to 1st floor
having Corinthian capitals
with honeysuckle leaves in
the centre of them,
entablature above with
garland ornamentation to the
frieze, then 2nd storey with
small plain pilasters, round-
headed windows and
pediment above. The outer
houses have only a
stringcourse above the
ground floor, cornice above
1st floor with garland
ornamentation in frieze and a
castellation effect to form a
sort of balustrade in front of
2nd floor windows. The
outside window of these
outer houses is set back and
on the ground floor there are
pairs of porches with caryatid
columns and balcony above.
Some of these balconies
have been glazed. Some of
the houses have had iron

I*

11-
OCT-
1949




balconies added. Windows in
frames, the ground floor ones
with entablatures over, those
in the central houses with
semi-circular panels over
them. Some glazing bars
missing. Rectangular
fanlights to all doors. Nos 1
to 14 (consec.) and the
gateway and lodges form a
group with Beechwood Hall.
Listing NGR: TQ1430102892

Parklands
Avenue

COURTLANDS HOSPITAL

TQ 10 SW PARKLANDS
AVENUE (West side), West
Worthing 24/90 Courtlands
Hospital 23.7.74 1l Originally
house, later hospital. Early
C19 reworked in early C20.
Brick with stone dressings
and slate roof with brick
chimneystacks. A large
rambling 2 and 3 storeyed
building, greatly altered and
added to and possibly with
an older core. The North
front has a columned porch.
The pilasters and iron-work
on the south front are said to
be re-used Adam features.
The East front has a
projecting bay on columns.
The interior was re-furbished
in the earlyC20 and has
reused C18 features. The
iron balustered staircase is
said to be by Adam and the
hall has plasterwork in the
Adam style, there is a C20
marble floor and C18 marble
fireplace with panel of
cherubs, alternate glyphs
and paterae, corner urns and
fluted pilasters. There is a
painted glass dome in the
Adam style said to have
come from the 1788
Cordwainers Hall, No 7
Cannon Street in the City of
London on its demolition in
1909 but most likely to be of
the latter date. The Queen
Ann~ Room has early C20
oak panelling. The Drawing
Room is later C18 with
gilding, pilasters, mirrors and
an exceedingly fine coffered
ceiling enriched with rosettes
and moulding which is not in

23-
JUL-
1974




situ as one end covers over a
bow window the width of the
house. There is a tradition
that the ceiling came from
Paris but it is possible that
this room could be part of
Sylvanus Hall's work for the
Cordwainers Hall of 1788,
which was demolished in
1909. The L-shaped part of
the hospital to the right is not
of special architectural
interest. Source: Howard
Colvin "A Biographical
Dictionary of British
Architects. 1600-1840. Third
edition 1995 p449. The
previous list entry read:
PARKLANDS AVENUE 1.
5406 (West Side) West
Worthing Courtlands Hospital
TQ 10 SW 24/90 23.7.74. 1l
2. Early C19. Brick with stone
dressings. A large rambling 2
and 3 storeyed building,
greatly altered and added to
and possibly with an older
core. The North front has a
columned porch. The
pilasters and iron-work on
the south front are said to be
re-used Adam features. The
East front has a projecting
bay on columns. The main
interests of the house are the
re-used interior features. The
staircase is said to be by
Adam and the hall has
plasterwork in the Adam
style. There is a painted
glass dome in the Adam style
said to have come from
Cordwainers Hall on its
demolition in 1904. The
Drawing room is in the
French style of the mid C18,
and the ceiling is said to
have come from Paris. The
L-shaped part of the hospital
to the right is not of special
architectural interest. Listing
NGR: TQ1190402503

Parklands
Avenue

SUNDIAL SITUATED TO THE
EAST OF COURTLANDS
HOUSE

TQ 10 SW WORTHING
PARKLANDS AVENUE
753/24/10015 Sundial
situated to the east of
Courtlands House GV I
Sundial. Stone. Early C20 in

06-
MAY -
1997




the style of the C18. Some
repair. Rectangular pedestal
with swagged die
surmounted by an enriched
baluster crowned by a cube
with dials and gnomons to
four faces. Listing NGR:
TQ1194302510

Parklands
Avenue

GAZEBO AT COURTLANDS TO
THE EAST OF THE HOUSE

TQ 10 SW WORTHING
PARKLANDS AVENUE
753/24/10031 Gazebo at
Courtlands to the east of the
House GV Il Gazebo
terminating the terrace (qv)
on the south, garden front of
Courtlands (qv). Early C20.
Probably brick, rendered with
stone quoins and dressings.
Slated hipped roof with stone
modillion eaves cornice.
Rectangular plan. Classical
style. West front has a distyle
screen flanked by tall
pilasters to small-paned
French doors with radial
fanlight and keystone. North
front with an oculus. Listing
NGR: TQ1194302484

09-
DEC-
1998

Parklands
Avenue

GARDEN ARCHWAY AT
COURTLANDS, SOUTH WEST
FORMAL GARDEN

TQ 10 SW WORTHING
PARKLANDS AVENUE
753/24/10032 Garden
Archway at Courtlands, south
west Formal garden GV I
Garden archway to the south
west formal garden at
Courtlands (qv). Early C20.
Dressed stone. Classical
style. 2 pillars with console
bracketed buttresses and ball
finials flank a moulded
archway with keystone.
Listing NGR: TQ1193202500

09-
DEC-
1998

Parklands
Avenue

BALUSTRADED TERRACE TO
THE REAR OF THE HOUSE AT
COURTLANDS

TQ 10 SW WORTHING
PARKLANDS AVENUE
753/24/10033 Balustraded
Terrace to the rear of the
house at Courtlands GV I
Balustraded terrace running
along the south, garden front
of Courtlands (qv) to the
Gazebo (qv). Early C20.
Stone paved with yellow
brick retaining walls topped
by a stone balustrade of
balusters and dies. Stone
steps at east and west ends
flanked by dies surmounted
by obelisks. Listing NGR:

09-
DEC-
1998




TQ1193102496

Pond Lane

THATCHED COTTAGE

POND LANE 1. 5406
Durrington TQ 10 W 23/223
Durringmere In the above
entry: Durringmere shall be
amended to read Thatched

Cottage --------------------
-------- POND LANE 1. 5406
Durrington Durringmere TQ
10 NW 23/223 1l 2. Probably
C18, possibly with earlier
interior features. Painted flint
with brick dressings.
Thatched, hipped at west
end. 2 storeys. Irregular
fenestration. One window in
east end. North front: left-
hand porch with thatched
gable and small windows in
sides. One window in upper
floor, 4 below (including to
extension under roof slope at
right end). Small chimney at
top of hip. All windows are
modern casements. Listing
NGR: TQ1182805051

21-
MAY -
1976

Portland
Road

CHRIST CHURCH SCHOOL
(NOW REPS HEALTH
STUDIOS)

PORTLAND ROAD 1. 5406
(West Side) Christ Church
School TQ 1402 NE 3/24A
23.7.74. 11 2. H-shaped
building of circa 1850. 2
storeys. 4 windows. Faced
with knapped flints with stone
dressings and quoins. Slate
roof. Pointed casement
windows. The gabled wings
have single pointed lights on
the 1st floor and 2 lights on
the ground floor. 2 gables
between the wings, each
containing a large pointed
window of 3 lights. Small
central projection almost like
a tower with a gable below it
and a pointed doorway.
Listing NGR: TQ1469302704

23-
JUL-
1974

Portland
Road (116)

PORTLAND ROAD 1. 5406
(East Side) No 116 TQ 1402
NE 3/122 1l 2. Facing Field
Row (a footpath). Probably
circa 1800. Semi-detached
with No 118 and possibly
built together with it. 2
storeys and basement. 2
widely spaced symmetrically
arranged sash windows, with
glazing bars, nearly flush,
with moulded wooden

21-
MAY -
1976




surrounds. (Basement
windows horizontal sashes
with glazing bars). Stucco
front. Central 6-panel door
with overlight. Rear west
front faces Portland Street
across front garden. 2 small
windows, the upper ones
modern, the lower sashes
with glazing bars. Rendered.
Single-span roof, with
modern tiles to west. Later
C19 wing at south end of
west side. Listing NGR:
TQ1472302764

Portland
Road (118)

PORTLAND ROAD 1. 5406
(East Side) No 118 TQ 1402
NE 3/123 1l 2. Probably circa
1800. Semi-detached with
No 116 and possibly built
together with it, but with later
alterations. 2 storeys and
basement. 2 widely-spaced,
symmetrically arranged sash
windows (with glazing bars);
larger than those of No 116,
flush and with moulded
wooden surrounds. (Left
basement window a Victorian
sash and right a casement).
Stucco front. Parapet,
probably added. Later central
projection, with 2 small
round-headed windows on
each floor and door on south
side (with 6 panels, top 4
fielded). North end shows
flint and brick construction. 2-
span roof. Rear, west front
has modern projecting
ground storey with terrace
over (and further projection
on north, abutting premises
fronting Portland Street). 2
widely-spaced windows with
glazing bars in upper sashes.
Off-centre door to terrace.
Ashlared stucco. Projecting
eaves with small widely-
spaced brackets. Listing
NGR: TQ1472102772

21-
MAY -
1976

Portland
Road (75)

PORTLAND ROAD 1. 5406
(West Side) No 75 TQ 1402
NE 3/117 Il GV 2. Before
1814. 3 storeys and attic.
Evidently of same build as
Nos 77 and 79. Painted grey
headers. Brick modillion

21-
MAY -
1976




eaves cornice. Replacement
tile roof (with one casement
dormer). One sash window
with glazing bars. Later
shopfront. Nos 75 to 89 (odd)
form a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1471202625

Portland
Road (77 and
79)

PORTLAND ROAD 1. 5406
(West Side) Nos 77 and 79
TQ 1402 NE 3/116 1l GV
Before 1814. 3 storeys and
attic. Grey headers and
yellow-coloured brick window
surrounds. 2 sashes each
house, with glazing bars but
the left hand ones narrower
and blind, except on 1st
storey of No 77, and on
ground floor, where there are
doors (that of No 79
recessed; No 77 having an
additional door, probably to
through passage). Slate roof,
with dormer to each house
(No 77 a casement, No 79
sash with glazing bars). Nos
75 to 89 (odd) form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1471102632

21-
MAY -
1976

Portland
Road (79 and
81)

HARE AND HOUNDS PUBLIC
HOUSE

PORTLAND ROAD 1. 5406
(West Side) No 81 (Hare and
Hounds Public House) TQ
1402 NE 3/115 11 GV 2.
Before 1814. 3 storeys. One
window: a sash with glazing
bars on top floor, a casement
on the middle floor. Victorian
pub front on ground floor with
pairs of pilasters flanking
side doors and moulded
brackets at ends; central
window over panel. A sash
dormer with glazing bars.
Painted cobbles, with brick
quoins, window surrounds
and modillion eaves cornice.
Nos 75 to 89 (odd) form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1471102635

21-
MAY -
1976

Portland
Road (83 and
85)

PORTLAND ROAD 1. 5406
(West Side) Nos 83 and 85
TQ 1402 NE 3/114 11 GV 2.
Before 1814. 3 storeys and
attics. Stucco-fronted. Slate
mansard roof. 3-light sash
bay window on 1st and 2nd
storey to each house (sash
windows below these).
Shared blind windows

21-
MAY -
1976




between these (with round-
headed through-passage
doorway below); and blind
windows at outer ends, over
doorways. Casement dormer
to each (that of No 85
modern). Nos 75 to 89 (odd)
form a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1471102653

Portland
Road (87)

PORTLAND ROAD 1. 5406
(West Side) No 87 TQ 1402
NE 3/113 1l GV 2. Before
1814. Of the same build as
the Hare and Hounds. 3
storeys and attic. Painted
cobbles with brick quoins,
window surrounds and
modillion eaves cornice. One
window (narrower than Hare
and Hounds, with modern
casements) right of centre.
Left-hand modern door. No
dormer. Nos 75 to 89 (odd)
form a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1471002659

21-
MAY -
1976

Portland
Road (89)

PORTLAND ROAD 1. 5406
(West Side) No 89 TQ 1402
NE 3/112 1l GV 2. Before
1814. Juts out beyond
building line of Nos 75-87.
The east of a pair of cottages
at right-angles to the road. 2
storeys, Rendered. Slate
hipped roof. 2 sash windows
with glazing bars above and
larger one off-centre below,
with right-hand door. Nos 75
to 89 (odd) form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1471502668

21-
MAY -
1976

Portland
Road (90 to
94 even)

PORTLAND ROAD 1. 5406
(East Side) Nos 90 to 94
(even) TQ 1402 NE 3/119 II
2. Before 1814. 3 storeys.
Stucco-fronted. Slate roofs
except No 90 (renewed).
One window each (sashes
without glazing bars or
casements, except No 90
which has modern sashes
with glazing bars). Shallow
porches in form of ogee
arches. Listing NGR:
TQ1473402687

21-
MAY -
1976

Prospect
Place (1 and
1A)

PROSPECT PLACE TQ
1402 SW 4/153 Nos 1 & IA
GV Il House, shop and
industrial premises. 1820-30.

11-
MAR-
1988




Faced with cobbles with
mainly painted brick
dressings, patch of C20 brick
infill and slate roof, hipped to
left and end right cemented
chimneystack. 2 storeys,
attics and semi-basement: 3
windows. Roof has 2 flat
roofed dormers with fixed
casements. 1st floor has 2
original early C19 20 pane
sashes with wooden
architraves with cambered
heads. Ground floor has
central 20 pane sash with
semi-basement opening
beneath, both with cambered
heads. Left side doorcase
has round-headed arch with
reveals, semi-circular fanlight
and 4 panelled door with
integral fanlight. 4 stone
steps. Right hand side has
later C19 shopfront with
continuous glazing above (8
X 2 panes) above a shopfront
with 6 panes and left side
doorcase with 2 fielded
panels and glass above.
Long west extension of same
period of 1 storey with
continuos window at top of
wall, otherwise sash
windows. Listing NGR:
TQ1461602384

Prospect
Place (10 to
18 even)

PROSPECT PLACE 1. 5406
(East Side) Nos 10 to 18
(even) TQ 1402 SE 4/152
10.11.75. Il GV 2. Probably
before 1814. Terrace
cottages. 3 storeys and attic.
One sash window each
(without glazing bars and
some modified). All ground
floor windows enlarged
except that of No 16. Right-
hand doors, all modern
except that of No 10, which is
of 6 panels, bottom pair
moulded, the next fielded
and the top glazed. Nos 10
and 12 are stucco-fronted;
Nos 14-18 of cobbles, with
painted brick quoins to
openings and between
houses. All have painted
brick modillion eaves cornice,
to front and rear except to

10-
NOV-
1975




front of No 10. Nos 10 to 18
(even) form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1462002390

Railway
Approach

THE ORIGINAL WORTHING
RAILWAY STATION

RAILWAY APPROACH 1.
5406 The Original Worthing
Railway Station TQ 1403
17/86 25.8.71. 11 2. Built in
1845 when the Brighton to
Portsmouth line was
constructed. Converted into 2
cottages after 1859, when a
new Station was built further
west. 2 storeys. 5 windows.
Faced with cobbles with red
brick dressings and long and
short quoins to each window
bay. Eaves cornice. Slate
roof. Casement windows.
Listing NGR: TQ1461803370

25-
AUG-
1971

Railway
Approach
(27)

CHAPMANS

WORTHING TQ 1403
RAILWAY APPROACH (east
side) 753/17/10026
Chapmans Il Includes:
Chapmans, OXFORD ROAD
Alternatively known as:
Central Hotel, RAILWAY
APPROACH. Hotel and
public house. ¢1900 with
some late C20 alterations
and extensions to rear.
Vernacular Revival style of
red brick in English bond with
timber-framed gables with
plastered infill and tiled roof
with tall brick chimneystacks.
EXTERIOR: the principal
feature is a 3-storey
octagonal corner turret with
ogee-shaped tiled dome with
finial. Arched doorcase below
into Public Bar. Remainder
of2 storeys and attics.
Elevation to Station
Approach has 4 gables, one
projecting, with two single
and two double doors and
frosted glass to all windows
on ground floor. Elevation to
Oxford Road has one gable
with timber-framing, 6-light
window to second floor, 4-
light window to first floor and
2 half-glazed doors and 2
windows all with cambered
headed windows with stained
glass fanlights with leaf
decoration and frosted glass
windows. Late C20

01-
SEP-
1997




conservatory to rear.
INTERIOR: public bar retains
lincrusta ceiling, 2 Tuscan
columns painted to represent
marble, mahogany dado
panelling, wooden partition
with engraved glass panels,
large wooden clock, tiled
fireplace, bar fitment with
round-headed arches and
original counter with floor
tiling in front of it. Staircase
hall has well staircase with
widely spaced balusters.
Listing NGR: TQ1452703318

Richmond
Road

ST MARY'S ROMAN CATHOLIC
CHURCH

RICHMOND ROAD 1. 5406
(South Side) St Mary's
Roman Catholic Church TQ
1402 NW 1/104 11 GV 2.
1864. Attributed to Henry
Clutton. Interior and additions
to exterior circa 1939. Plum-
red brick, as the adjacent
convent which is part of the
composition. Steep tiled roof.
Plate tracery. Rose windows
in east end (ritual west) and
north transept. 3 lancets in
choir end. North side fronts
Richmond Road, east end
Crescent Road and south
side abuts the Convent.
North aisle and clerestorey
have lancet windows.
Projecting porch with double
arches on colonettes and
belfry with miniature spire on
north side, together with
modern single-storey
extension. Interior very plain.
St Mary's Roman Catholic
Church and No 39 form a
group with Our Lady of Sion
Convent, and the wall
extending south, Crescent
Road. Listing NGR:
TQ1441502779

21-
MAY -
1976

Richmond
Road (39)

THE PARISH ROOMS (ST
CHRISTOPHER'S
REPOSITORY),ST MARY'S
ROMAN CATHOLIC CHURCH

RICMOND ROAD 1. 5406
(South Side) TQ 1402 NW
1/103 No 39 (saint
Christopher's) In the above
entry: No 39 (Saint
Christopher's) shall be
amended to read: The Parish
Rooms (St Christopher's
Repository), St Mary's
Roman Catholic Church ------

21-
MAY -
1976




RICHMOND ROAD 1. 5406
(South Side) No 39 (Saint
Christopher's) TQ 1402 NW
1/103 1l GV 2. Evidently
contemporary with St Mary's
Church, being part of the
composition and of the same
materials (including the
banding and brick eaves
nogging of the convent). 2
storeys. West side; 2 sash
windows, the left-hand 3-
light, the right-hand one-light.
The lower left window
projects (and has
casements) east side: one
sash window either side of
the door, and one on right-
hand dormer window above.
Tiled roof. St Mary's Roman
Catholic Church and No 39
form a group with Our Lady
of Sion Convent, and the wall
extending south, Crescent
Road. Listing NGR:
TQ1440602794

Richmond
Road (52,
52A and 52B)

RICHMOND ROAD 1. 5406
No 52, 52A and 52B TQ
1402 NE 3/27 11 G.V. House.
1843, by Charles Hide (1810-
1876) architect and town
surveyor of Worthing.
Whitewashed stone rubble,
cement render and
pebbledash, old tiled roofs.
Tudor Gothic style. 2 storeys
with attics. Entrance front
has 2 4-centred windows at
west, one 3 light mullioned
and transomed battlemented
bay window at east. 2 first
floor 2 light casements, one
central 2 light casement, one
gabled 2 light casement.
Central 4-centred arched
door with above jettied first
floor part timber part painted
plaster to imitate studwork
bay projection with barge
boarded gable. Prominent
external chimney breast,
corbelled out at first floor 2
twisted stacks. West returned
gable has ground floor
rectangular bay window, first
floor jettied upper gable with
painted stud work and
elaborate barge boarded

06-
NOV-
1986




gable. Roof hipped at east
with battlemented parapet
and twisted stacks. 2 storeys
wing at canted angle at east
has ground floor cross
window, first floor 3-light
casement, jettied east gable,
barge boards. Garden front
(north) has returned gable
wing at west, large ground
floor bay windows. Pebble
dashed, slate roofed, 2
storey service wing at rear
(No 52A). INTERIOR: ‘L' plan
ground floor hall with dog-leg
staircase with Gothic newels
and classical iron balusters.
Walls scored for stucco
lining, now painted.
Doorcases with rusticated
surrounds, plaster labels and
heads, 3 panel doors with 2
upper 4- centred arches and
lower quatrefoil panel
tracery. Front door same
details with 2 leaded side-
lights. Panelled and ribbed
ground floor and first floor
landing ceiling. Labelled and
rusticated opening on half
landing. 2 reception rooms of
hall with Gothic plaster
ceilings, with frieze and
cornices, panelled window
embrasures. Fireplaces
missing throughout. Details
in service wing suggest build
of same date as house
(c1840). An ambitious villa
antedating the main
development of Worthing,
remarkably in a Tudor-Gothic
style, picturesquely
contrasting with the
neighbouring neoclassical
villas. Called Gothic Lodge
and Tudor Court at various
periods. See H Smail
Worthing Map Story (1949) p
129 and Edward Snewin and
H Smail Glimpses of Old
Worthing (1945) p 87; Builder
XXXV, 1876, p 645. Listing
NGR: TQ1456502872

Richmond
Road (54)

GATEPIERS OF NUMBER 54
TO THE SOUTH

RICHMOND ROAD 1. 5406
(North Side) Gatepiers of No
54 to the south TQ 1402 NE
3/107B 1l 2. Probably

21-
MAY -
1976




contemporary with the
house. Stucco-faced.
Square, with Grecian
moulded caps, having
pediments on each side.
Listing NGR: TQ1454002829

Richmond
Road (54)

RICHMOND ROAD 1. 5406
(North Side) No 54 TQ 1402
NE 3/107 1l 2. Probably part
of the same development as
Heslington House and circa
1845. A substantial villa set
back in its own garden,
alongside Heslington House.
Stucco. A picturesque
composition of Italian flavour.
Left section 3-storey, right 2-
storey. Continuous frieze and
cornice at eaves level of the
latter. Hipped slate roofs.
Central semi-circular
projection on 2 storeys
beneath painted dome, with
4 pilasters supporting
architrave on each storey,
the entrance (and windows
above) being in the wider,
central bay. Single matching
casement in flanking sections
(except for 3-light one on
ground floor left hand). Both
ground floor windows have
straight bracketed hoods. 3rd
storey of left section has 3-
light blind window under
triple arch. There is a 2-
storey extension to the right.
Listing NGR: TQ1453002872

21-
MAY -
1976

Richmond
Road (54)

SECTION OF WALL BOUNDING
GARDEN OF NUMBER 54 TO
THE EAST

RICHMOND ROAD 1. 5406
(North Side) Section of wall
bounding garden of No 54 to
the east TQ 1402 NE 3/107A
Il 2. Flint. Probably earlier
than the house. Listing NGR:
TQ1453802870

21-
MAY -
1976

Richmond
Road (56)

HESLINGTON HOUSE

RICHMOND ROAD 1. 5406
(North Side) No 56
(Heslington House) TQ 1402
NW 1/25 TQ 1402 NE 3/25 I
2. About 1845. 2 storeys, 5
windows and extension of 2
windows to north-east.
Stuccoed. Cornice and high
parapet with pediment in it.
Large flat hood to door
added later. The south-west
side has 2 windows with
pediment over. Listing NGR:

21-
MAY -
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TQ1450502858

Salvington
Road

SALVINGTON LETTS (OLD
SUSSEX COTTAGE)

SALVINGTON ROAD 1.
5406 (North Side) Durrington
Salvington Letts (Old Sussex
Cottage) TQ 1205 10/75
11.10.49. 1l GV 2. (This is the
real name of the house, but
in the Rate-books it is
entered as Old Sussex
Cottage). C17. 2 storeys. 4
windows. Squared flints with
red brick dressings and
stringcourse. Red tiled roof.
Modern casement windows.
Extension of 3 windows to
west. All the listed buildings
at Salvington Letts form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1272205203

11-
OCT-
1949

Salvington
Road

OUTBUILDING TO NORTH

WEST OF SALVINGTON LETTS

SALVINGTON ROAD 1.
5406 (North Side) Durrington
Outbuilding to north-west of
Salvington Letts TQ 1205
10/175 11 GV 2. Perhaps
C18. Flint and some brick.
Hipped, pantiled roof.
Oblong. Single-storey height.
All the listed buildings at
Salvington Letts form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1275005214

21-
MAY -
1976

Salvington
Road

BARN TO WEST OF
SALVINGTON LETTS, WITH
OUTBUILDING AS CROSS
RANGE

SALVINGTON ROAD 1.
5406 (North Side) Durrington
Barn to west of Salvington
Letts, with outbuilding as
cross-range TQ 1205 10/176
Il GV 2. Probably circa 1800.
Flint with brick dressings.
Slate roofs. Both double
doors of barn blocked. All the
listed buildings at Salvington
Letts form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1273305201

21-
MAY -
1976

Salvington
Road

ROSE COTTAGE

SALVINGTON ROAD TQ 10
NW DURRINGTON 23/221
Rose Cottage GV Il Cottage
c1723, extended 1808 with
C19 casements. Faced with
knapped flint with red brick
dressings. Tiled roof with 3
brick chimney-stacks, 2
storeys 3 windows to main
part of cottage. C19
casements. End quoins,
aprons under 1st floor
windows and plinth. Later
door to right hand side is

21-
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original brick surround. Right
hand side has addition of 1
bay in matching-materials
dated 1808 with the initials O
and T A. (0 standing for
Overington). Left side
addition of 1 bay which is
rendered. 2 gables to rear
elevation. Interior has brick
open fireplace with wooden
bressumer with lamb's
tongue stop and spice
cupboard. Large axial beam
but some of the floor joists
are rough poles. Listing
NGR: TQ1192905248

Salvington BOUNDARY WALL ENCLOSING | SALVINGTON ROAD 1. Il 20-
Road THE PREMISES OF MESSRS 5406 (North Side) Durrington OCT-
OVERRINGTON TO THE WEST | Boundary wall enclosing the 1975
AND TO THE NORTH (THE premises of Messrs
LATTER RETURN STRETCH Overrington to the west and
ON THE EAST TO ABUT THE to the north (the latter having
COTTAGE RANGE AND ALSO | areturn stretch on the east to
HAVING A SHORT EXTENSION | abut the cottage range and
TO THE WEST, TO ABUT also having a short extension
DURRINGTON HILL) to the west, to abut
Durrington Hill) TQ 10 NW
23/222 20.10.75. 1l 2.
Probably C18. Of flint and
some brick, but rendered on
the north stretch. A modern
workshop abuts the middle
section of the west stretch.
Listing NGR: TQ1191405238
Salvington FRONT GARDEN WALL OF SALVINGTON ROAD 1. Il 21-
Road SALVINGTON LETTS, TO 5406 (North Side) Durrington MAY -
EAST, SOUTH AND WEST Front garden wall of 1976
WITH PIERS Salvington Letts, to east,
south and west with piers TQ
1205 10/174 11 GV 2.
Probably early C19. Low flint
wall stone coping and piers
of flint with brick dressings.
All the listed buildings at
Salvington Letts form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1277805192
Salvington OUTBUILDING ALONG ROAD SALVINGTON ROAD 1. I 21-
Road IMMEDIATELY TO WEST OF 5406 (North Side) Durrington MAY -
SALVINGTON LETTS, Outbuilding along road 1976

ADJACENT TO BARN

immediately to west of
Salvington Letts, adjacent to
barn TQ 1205 10/177 Il GV
2. Probably circa 1800. Flint,
with brick dressings. Mostly
open on inner north side.
Hipped slate roof. All the
listed buildings at Salvington




Letts form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1273605184

Selden Lane
(1to 3
consec.)

SELDEN LANE 1. 5406
(West Side) Nos 1to 3
(consec.) TQ 1502 NE 7/161
I GV 2. Early to mid C19. In
appearance, a pair of
cottages. 2 storeys. Big flints
with ample brick surrounds to
openings and vertical
quoining between the
cottages. 2 sash windows
each with glazing bars, with
doors nearly below the outer
ones. Slate roof with gable
chimneys. Nos 1 to 3
(consec.), and the garden
wall to Nos 1 to 3 (consec.),
form a group with Nos 4 and
5 and the garden wall to Nos
4 and 5 which are of local
interest. Listing NGR:
TQ1573902874

21-
MAY -
1976

Selden Lane
(1to 3
consec.)

FRONT GARDEN WALL TO
EAST ALONG STREET, OF
NUMBERS 1 TO 3

SELDEN LANE 1. 5406
(West Side) Front garden
wall to east along street, of
Nos 1 to 3 (consec.) TQ
1502 NE 7/161A 1l GV 2.
Probably contemporary with
cottages. Low cobble wall to
front garden along street.
Nos 1 to 3 (consec.), and the
garden wall to Nos 1 to 3
(consec.), form a group with
Nos 4 and 5 and the garden
wall to Nos 4 and 5 which are
of local interest. Listing NGR:
TQ1574602884

21-
MAY -
1976

Smugglers
Walk (14)

SMUGGLER'S FARM

1. SMUGGLER'S WALK
5406 West Worthing
Smuggler's Farm TQ 1202
13/85 Il 2. The original
portion is the south wing,
which is a timber-framed
cottage, the exterior of which
is now plastered. The lower
fringe of the roof is of
Horsham Slabs, but most of
it is tiled. Casement
windows. 2 storeys. 4
windows. The West Sussex
County Council Record
Office says that the building
was sold in 1522. Behind to
the north-west is an L-wing
composed of 2 parallel
ranges which were added in
the C18. These are of much

21-
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higher elevation and are
faced with cobbles and
knapped flints with red brick
window dressings and
quoins. Tiled roof. Casement
windows. 2 storeys. 2
windows facing east. Listing
NGR: TQ1226502128

South Farm
Road

SOUTH FARM COTTAGES (1 to
4)

SOUTH FARM ROAD 1.
5406 (West Side) Nos 1 to 4
(consec.) South Farm
Cottages TQ 1404 16/200
17.2.76. 1l 2. Dated 1720. A
symmetrical range at right-
angles to the road. 2 storeys
and attic. Coursed flints with
brick bands above storeys.
South fronts 2 paired
casement windows each side
of centre. Middle cottages
have doors at inner ends,
outer ones have them at the
outer ends. North front: the
same but larger ground-floor
windows and 2 casement
dormers. Steep, slated roof.
2 ridge chimneys. Quoining
to corners and down centre.
One casement in east gable.
Many of the casements have
probably early slender metal
glazing bars. Listing NGR:
TQ1420204103

17-
FEB-
1976

South Farm
Road

GATEWAY AND CHAPELS OF
BROADWATER CEMETERY,
TOGETHER WITH TOMBS OF
RICHARD JEFFERIES,(NEAR
MIDDLE OF CEMETERY) AND
WH HUDSON (ON SOUTH
SIDE)

SOUTH FARM ROAD 1.
5406 (East Side) Gateway
and chapels of Broadwater
Cemetery, together with
tombs of Richard Jefferies,
(near middle of cemetery)
and W H Hudson (on south
side) TQ 1404 16/201 1l 2.
Probably circa 1870. An H-
shaped Gothic Revival
entrance gate incorporating
Church of England Chapel
(on north) and Nonconformist
Chapel (on south). Both
chapels are out of use, that
on the south now being used
as cemetery workshed.
Random rubble of variegated
colours, with masonry
dressings. Chapels present
gables to east and west
having large windows with
Decorated tracery to the east
and lancets to tile west. Arch
on corbels to passage

21-
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through cross range with
Tuscan inscription on tablet
over. Both tombs are simple
with plain marble kerbs.
Richard Jefferies (1848-
1887) was a novelist and
essayist mostly with
naturalistic themes. W H
Hudson (1841-1922) was
also a naturalist and writer.
See Dictionary of National
Biography. Listing NGR:
TQ1421004396

South Street
(41 and 43)

LLOYD'S BANK

SOUTH STREET 1. 5406
(West Side) Nos 41 and 43
(Lloyd's Bank) TQ 1402 NE
3/126 Il 2. Circa 1870. Partly
included for its very
prominent position at the
crossroads between the 2
main streets of the centre of
the town. The facade is in 4
straight sections angled
round the curve between
South Street and Liverpool
Road. 3 storeys and attic.
Stuccoed. 8 sash windows, 2
to each section, enclosed
within an order of 18% fluted
polished granite Corinthian
pilasters (paired at ends of
each section and to left-hand
doorway), supporting
entablature and parapet (with
3 pairs of openings for
dormers). Moulded frames
and pendants to 2nd floor
windows. Segmental
pediments on brackets to 1st
floor windows. Moulded
arches on imposts to ground-
floor windows, with fielded
panels below. Listing NGR:
TQ1490802587

21-
MAY -
1976

South Street
Tarring

MARKET HOUSE (1, 2 AND 3)

1. CHURCH ROAD 5406
(South Side) West Tarring
TQ 1304 SW 15/266 Nos 1,
2 and 3 Market House In the
above entry: CHURCH
ROAD (South Side) West
Tarring shall be amended to
read: SOUTH STREET West
Tarring -------------=--=--mmmmmmo-
------- CHURCH ROAD 1.
5406 (South Side) West
Tarring Nos 1, 2 and 3
Market House TQ 1304 SW
15/226 11 GV 2. Probably late

21-
MAY -
1976




C18. Occupying a prominent
position opposite the end of
the High Street. Symmetrical.
2 storeys. Grey headers with
red quoining and window
surrounds. 4 widely-spaced
sash windows with glazing
bars. 3 Victorian shopfronts,
middle one beneath 2 middle
windows; end ones with
doors at inner ends, middle
with 2 right-hand doors (6
fielded panels). Projecting
moulded cornice to shops.
Steep tiled roof (renewed).
Nos 1, 2 and 3 Market House
and Nos 54 to 58 (even) form
a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1339603348

South Street
Tarring

BISHOP'S GARTH

SOUTH STREET 1. 5406
(East Side) West Tarring
Bishop's Garth TQ 1303
12/185 11 2. A symmetrical
house, probably of the later
C18. 2 storeys. 2 widely-
spaced casement windows,
the lower ones with
cambered heads. Flint with
brick dressings. Brick
modillion eaves cornice.
Steepish tiled roof with gable
chimneys. Central doorway
with cambered head. Listing
NGR: TQ1326703962

21-
MAY -
1976

South Street
Tarring

THE OLD PALACE

SOUTH STREET 1. 5406
(East Side) West Tarring The
Old Palace TQ 1304 SW
15/58 11.10.49. 1 2. Remains
of a C13 house with C15 hall,
built on the site of
Archbishop Becket's Palace.
Converted into the Rectory at
the Reformation and since
the erection of the modern
Rectory used as the Parish
Hall. T-shaped flint and
rubble building with stone
guoins and frames to
windows and doors. Gable at
east end. South and west
sides have buttresses. C15
2-light cinquefoil headed
windows with stone mullions
and transoms. C13 lancet
window in south wing.
Horsham stone slate roof,
the upper portion renewed
with red tiles. Listing NGR:

11-
OCT-
1949




TQ1327204010

South Street
Tarring

DOVECOTE TO SOUTH OF
THE OLD PALACE

SOUTH STREET 1. 5406
(East Side) West Tarring
Dovecote to south of the Old
Palace TQ 1303 12/227
1.9.75. 1I* 2. Attributed in
origin to before 1250.
Referred to in a document of
1313. Present building
probably C18. Exterior of
cobble with brick corners,
interior of brick niche-work.
Square, with tiled roof,
hipped all round but rising
into a short ridge with the
usual 2 gablets. Door to
south, (renewed) casement
to west, both with cambered
brick heads. Listing NGR:
TQ1327303989

I

01-
SEP-
1975

South Street
Tarring

THE PENDULES

SOUTH STREET 1. 5406
(West Side) West Tarring
The Pendules TQ 1303
12/57 11 2. Early C19. 2
storeys. 2 windows.
Stuccoed. Small cornice with
modillions below eaves.
Slate roof. Stuccoed porch
with 6 panel moulded door,
the top 2 panels cut away
and glazed. Listing NGR:
TQ1327703824

21-
MAY -
1976

South Street
Tarring (100)

FOLLY TO REAR OF NUMBER
100

The following building shall
be added to the list:-
WORTHING SOUTH
STREET TQ 1203 & TQ
1303 (east side) West
Tarring 12/226 Folly to rear
of No 100 GV Il Folly. Early
C19 heightened mid C19;
altered later C19 and C20.
Coursed cobblestone with
brick dressings; roof material
not visible. A single cell,
square on plan, of 2 storeys
with basement. Brick quoins
to angles and openings, brick
band between storeys, eaves
cornice and embattled
parapet with pitched coping.
On lower floors the brick is
red, with some blue bricks;
on upper floor it is paler and
this and the slightly
differently-laid cobble
indicates that the upper
storey is of a different build.
Entrance elevation:

24-
JUL-
1989




segmental-arched basement
opening; above this,
cantilevered stone steps rise
to doorway which has C20
stable door below inserted
soldier-brick arch a blocked
pointed-arched window on
left. Upper floor has a later,
wide, 3-light window with
header-brick arch and
wooden casements with
pointed-arched glazing bars.
Rear: a pointed-arched
window to ground floor with
two 4-pane lights and glazing
bars in head; upper storey
has segmental-arched
casement with pointed-
arched glazing bars. Right
return: pointed-arched
casement to upper storey
with red brick surround. Left
return: pointed-arched
window to lower storey; wide
3-light window above as
front. Listing NGR:
TQ1339403626

South Street
Tarring (92)

NUMBER 92, INCLUDING LOW
WALL TO FRONT GARDEN

SOUTH STREET 1. 5406
(East Side) West Tarring No
92, including low wall to front
garden TQ 1303 12/56 11 2.
Early C19. 2 storeys. 3 sash
windows (with modern
glazing bars). Central
doorway with neo-Georgian
pedimented case and door,
replacing previous stuccoed
porch. Slate roof. Brick
modillion eaves cornice, over
flint front with red brick
dressings. Low cobble wall to
narrow front garden, with flat
stone cope, and entrance
piers with low-pyramid
coping stones, probably
contemporary with house.
Listing NGR: TQ1334903603

21-
MAY -
1976

South Street
Tarring (94
and 96)

NUMBER 96,INCLUDING LOW
WALL TO FRONT GARDEN

SOUTH STREET 1. 5406
(East Side) West Tarring Nos
94 and 96 including TQ 1303
12/184 low wall to front
gardens Il 2. A pair abutting
No 92. Early C19. 2 storeys.
Flint end red brick dressings.
Slate roof. Brick modillion
eaves cornice. Gable
chimney to go 96. No 94 has
one window and left-hand

21-
MAY -
1976




door. No 96 has 2 windows
(the lower right one a door).
Both have low flint wall to
street with flat stone coping.
The above entry shall be
mended to reads 1. 5406
SOUTH STREET (East Side)
West Tarring No 96,
including low wall TQ 1303
12/184 to front garden 1l 2.
An early C19 pair of houses,
now united. 2 storeys. Flint
with red brick dressings. 3
windows. Door below second
window and to left of 3rd.
Slate roof. Brick modillion
eaves cornice. Abutting No
92 on right; gable chimney
on left. Low flint wall to street
with flat stone coping. ---------
--------------------------- SOUTH
STREET 1. 5406 (East Side)
West Tarring Nos 94 and 96
including low wall to front

gardens TQ 1303 12/184 1l 2.

A pair abutting No 92. Early
C19. 2 storeys. Flint and red
brick dressings. Slate roof.
Brick modillion eaves
cornice. Gable chimney to
No 96. No 94 has one
window and left-hand door.
No 96 has 2 windows (the
lower right one a door). Both
have low flint wall to street
with flat stone coping. Listing
NGR: TQ1334803615

St.Georges
Road

ST GEORGE'S CHURCH

ST GEORGE'S ROAD 1.
5406 (East Side) St George's
Church TQ 1502 NE 7/262 C
2. 1868, by George Truefitt.
A broad plain building of
nave, with chancel and aisle
on west (ritual north) side,
both with apsidal ends (on
corner of Church Walk).
Coursed rubble with ashlar
bands and steep tiled roof.
Belfry with small spire in
eagle between aisle and
nave. Hipped narthex with
central gable porch. Mostly
small, single light windows.
Listing NGR: TQ1582202911

21-
MAY -
1976

The
Boulevard

BARN AND OUTBUILDINGS
NORTH AND EAST OF FIELD
PLACE

THE BOULEVARD 1. 5406
(East Side) Goring-by-Sea
Barn and outbuildings north
and east of Field Place TQ

21-
MAY -
1976




1203 12/183 11 GV 2. An L-
shaped block, probably
mainly dating from circa 1800
but much altered in modern
reconstruction. The north-
south range is formed of a
large oblong barn, of flint.
Full-height double-door
opening in centre of each
side (now blocked). Double
tiers of 3 slits each side of
doorways. A casement
dormer towards south end of
east side, in the pantiled roof,
the slope of which becomes
shallower at the bottom.
Possibly modern clock turret
over centre. The east-west
range has been very much
modernised but consists
mainly of a low, hipped
pantile span, having a
modern loggia beneath a
lean-to extension along the
south side. North side of flint
and hanging tiles, with
several modern casement
windows. All the listed
buildings at Field Place form
a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1227303578

The
Boulevard

FIELD PLACE

THE BOULEVARD 1. 5406
(East Side) Goring-by-Sea
Field Place TQ 1203 12/84
11.10.49. 11 GV 2. The
facade of this house was an
C18 front to an earlier
building. But it was refaced
with cement in the late
1940s. 2 storeys. 8 windows.
Portico with 4 Doric columns.
One room with very good
panelling dated 1624 inside.
Modern addition at the rear
of the house. All the listed
buildings at Field Place form
a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1217203497

11-
OCT-
1949

The
Boulevard

WALL TO SOUTH OF WEST
END OF THE BARN AND
OUTBUILDING NORTH AND
EAST OF FIELD PLACE

THE BOULEVARD 1. 5406
(East Side) Goring-by-Sea
Wall to south of west end of
the barn and outbuildings
north and east of Field Place
TQ 1203 12/182 11 GV 2. C18
or earlier. Chalk, flint and
brick with modern pantile
coping. All the listed
buildings at Field Place form

21-
MAY -
1976




a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1218103505

The
Boulevard

OUTBUILDING TO NORTH
EAST OF FIELD PLACE

THE BOULEVARD 1. 5406
(East Side) Goring-by-Sea
Outbuilding to north-east of
Field Place TQ 1203 12/225
I GV 2. A small detached
oblong building. Flint with
brick quoins and dressings.
Upper part of north end
shows exposed timbers;
upper part of south end
weather-boarded. Small
irregularly-placed casement
windows. Half hipped tile
roof. All the listed buildings at
Field Place form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1218603554

21-
MAY -
1976

The Steyne

K6 TELEPHONE KIOSK
(WORTHING 31586)

The following kiosk shall be
added to the list:
WORTHING THE STEYNE
TQ 1502 SW 6/271 K6
Telephone Kiosk (Worthing:
31586) GV Il Telephone
kiosk. Type K6. Designed
1935 by Sir Giles Gilbert
Scott. Made by various
contractors. Cast iron.
Square kiosk with domed
roof. Unperforated crowns to
top panels and margin
glazing to windows and door.
Listing NGR: TQ1512502453

11-
MAY -
1989

The Steyne

WAR MEMORIAL AT SOUTH
END OF STEYNE GARDENS

THE STEYNE 1. 5406 War
Memorial at south end of
Steyne Gardens TQ 1502
SW 6/159 1l 2. Polished
granite. Grey plinth with
sans-serif inscription to the
dead of the South African
War (1899-1902), with
pedestal below and pink
obelisk over cornice above.
Listing NGR: TQ1516802457

21-
MAY -
1976

The Steyne
(2-7consec,
12-16consec
and 17-
24consec)

CHATSWORTH HOTEL

THE STEYNE 1. 5406 Nos 2
to 7 (consec.) TQ 1502 W
5/17A Nos 12 to 24 (consec.)
TQ 1502 W 5/17 and the
Steyne Hotel TQ 1602 8V
6/17 In the above entry: Nos
210 7 (consec.) Nos 12 to 24
(consec.) and the Steyne
Hotel shall be amended to
read: Nos 2 to 7 (consec.)
Nos 12 to 16 (consec.) Nos
17 to 24 (consec.)
(Chatsworth Hotel) Steyne

21-
MAY -
1976




----- THE STEYNE 1. 5406
Nos 2 to 7 (consec.) Nos 12
to 24 (consec.) and the
Steyne Hotel TQ 1502 NW
5/17A TQ 1502 NW 5/17 TQ
1502 SW 6/17 1l GV 2. (The
return facade in Warwick
Street is listed under that
heading, Nos 34, 36 and
36A). There are no Nos 8 to
11. Circa 1807. 4 storeys and
basement with area. 3
windows each. White brick.
Stringcourse above ground
floor. Cornice with modillions
above the 3rd floor and
parapet. Iron balconies on
1st floor. Some glazing bars
missing, mostly on ground
floor. Rectangular fanlights to
doorways. The Steyne Hotel
has been a good deal
altered. The ground floor of
the east front has been
stuccoed and rusticated, and
the windows have been set
in surrounds. The south front
facing the sea has been
entirely refaced with 2 bays
of 3 windows each in the mid
C19. Listing NGR:
TQ1510902535

Titnore Lane

HIGHTITEN BARN

TITNORE ROAD 1. 5406
(West Side) Hightiten Barn
TQ 1004 8/166 7.5.75. 11 2. A
symmetrical composition,
probably of C18, the main
barn being flanked by lower
outbuildings, both of which
have long return ranges, thus
enclosing a yard on 3 sides.
Slate roofs throughout. The
main barn is oblong, of flint
with brick dressings and slit
openings. Double doors in
centres of long sides and
half-hipped roof of box-frame
construction. The lower
ranges are of timber, that to
the right being open to the
yard and both having roofs
hipped at the outer ends.
Listing NGR: TQ1015904262

07-
MAY -
1975

Titnore Way

COTTAGE FARM (NOW FLINT
COTTAGE)

1. TITNORE ROAD 5406
(East Side) Cottage Farm TQ
1004 8/167 1l 2. Circa 1875.
2 storeyed symmetrical

21-
MAY -
1976




cottage, of large flints with
brick quoining to windows
surrounds and to corners and
brick band between storeys.
Tiled roof with decorated
bands. Gabled chimneys with
decorative brick corbelling. 3
casement windows with
cambered heads. Central
gabled porch. Listing NGR:
TQ1031504521

Union Place

ADULT EDUCATION CENTRE
(BLOCK FRONTING UNION
PLACE)

UNION PLACE 1. 5406
(North Side) Adult Education
Centre (Block fronting Union
Place) TQ 1402 NE 3/128
2. Probably circa 1830. A
moderately ambitious design
but very badly mutilated.
Stuccoed. 2 storeys. An
order of lonic pilasters
supporting entablature and
parapet embraces both
floors; originally the order
evidently extended to 4 bays,
but only the 2 left-hand bays
(complete) are intact.
Similarly, there are 4 sash
windows with glazing bars
but the 2 upper right-hand
ones have been replaced by
one wide modern window.
Extensions to left and right.
Listing NGR: TQ1496202883

21-
MAY -
1976

Union Place

(4)

CONSERVATIVE
HEADQUARTERS

UNION PLACE 1. 5406
(North Side) Conservative
Headquarters TQ 1502 NW
5/129 11 2. Toward mid C19.
Detached 2-storey, stuccoed
house with hipped slate roof
over projecting eaves.
Symmetrical. 3 sash
windows with glazing bars, in
moulded surrounds (middle
upper one blind, right-hand
lower one a doorway up
steps, with overlight). Listing
NGR: TQ1502402894

21-
MAY -
1976

Victoria
Road

VESTRY OF ST ANDREW'S
CHURCH

VICTORIA ROAD 1. 5406
(East Side) TQ 1402 NW
1/100 St Andrew's Church
Hall Il 2. Evidently designed
with the church, and with a
link to it at south east corner
having a 3-light window. It
has a 5-light window of
Perpendicular style at either
end, a chequer pattern to the
west and a louvred fleche

21-
MAY -
1976




above. St Andrew's Church,
St Andrew's Church Hall, and
St Andrew's Vicarage form a
group. The above entry shall
be amended to read: 1. 5406
VICTORIA ROAD (East
Side) TQ 1402 W 1/100
Vestry of St Andrew's Church
I GV 2. 1908. (Link to St
Andrew's Church at south
east corner has a 3-light
window.) It has a 5-light
window of Perpendicular
style at either end, a chequer
pattern to the west and a
louvred flech above. St
Andrew's Church, the Vestry
of St Andrew's Church, and
St Andrew's Vicarage form a
group. ---=--=-=-===--memnmmmmemneeee
------ VICTORIA ROAD 5406
(East Side) St Andrew's
Church Hall TQ 1402 NW
1/100 Il GV 2. Evidently
designed with the church,
and with a link to it at south
east corner having a 3-light
window. It has a 5-light
window of Perpendicular
style at either end, a chequer
pattern to the west and a
louvred fleche above. St
Andrew's Church, St
Andrew's Church Hall, and St
Andrew's Vicarage form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1441902993

Victoria
Road

VICARAGE OF ST ANDREW'S
CHURCH

VICTORIA ROAD 1. 5406
(East Side) TQ 1402 NW
1/101 Vicarage of St
Andrew's Church Il GV 2.
Evidently designed with the
church and included mainly
for its group value with it.
Flint with stone dressings. 2
storeys and attic. East front:
2 gables, the left larger. 2
mullioned and transomed
windows (3-light above, 4-
light below, the left a bay) 2
slit windows to attic. Door in
overlap of rear cross wing, at
left. St Andrew's Church, St
Andrew's Church Hall, and St
Andrew's Vicarage form a
group. In the descriptive
notes for the above entry, the
first sentence should be

21-
MAY -
1976




amended to read: '1924.
Included mainly for its group
value with St Andrew's
Church.'
--------- VICTORIA ROAD 1.
5406 (East Side) Vicarage of
St Andrew's Church TQ 1402
NW 1/101 Il GV 2. Evidently
designed with the church and
included mainly for its group
value with it. Flint with stone
dressings. 2 storeys and
attic. East front: 2 gables, the
left larger. 2 mullioned and
transomed windows (3-light
above, 4-light below, the left
a bay) 2 slit windows to attic.
Door in overlap of rear cross
wing, at left. St Andrew's
Church, St Andrew's Church
Hall, and St Andrew's
Vicarage form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1442002981

Victoria
Road

ST ANDREW'S CHURCH

VICTORIA ROAD 1. 5406
(East Side) St Andrew's
Church TQ 1402 NW 1/99
TQ 1403 17/99 C GV 2.
1887-8 by Sir Arthur
Blomfield. A tall, rather
narrow building, of flint with
stone dressings, in Early
English style, having its west
end set back from Clifton
Road, and extending to the
parallel Victoria Road. West
fronts apse and flanking
gabled porches below 4
lancets and roundel in gable
end. East front: gable with 3
lancets. Interior: painted brick
with stone dressings.
Wooden roof, lean-to over
aisles, lower and painted
over chancel. Nave of 3
broad bays on circular
columns; chancel of 2 taller
arches, beyond chancel arch.
Transepts, with aisles but no
crossing. Low windows, in
groups of 3, to aisles; short
pairs of lancets in
clerestorey; tall 4-light
windows to transepts; pair of
3-light windows to chancel
aisles. Light, highly carved
choir screen and pulpit
canopy. Carved wooden
reredos enclosing paintings.

21-
MAY -
1976




Ironwork screen to south-
east transept arch. St
Andrew's Church, St
Andrew's Church Hall, and St
Andrew's Vicarage form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1438803007

Warwick
Place (10)

The following building shall
be added to the list:
WORTHING WARWICK
PLACE TQ 1502 NW 5/146
No 10 GV Il Cottage. c.1835.
Stuccoed with incised lines to
imitate masonry. Slate roof
with brick chimneystack. 2
storeys 1 window. 12-pane
sash in reveals. Left side
doorcase with C20 half-
glazed door and original
ogee-shaped rendered porch
with impost blocks, in the
form of an upturned boat.
C20 windows to rear. Listing
NGR: TQ1529802732

08-
MAY -
1990

Warwick
Place (13
and 14)

WARWICK PLACE 1. 5406
(East Side) Nos 13 and 14
TQ 1502 NW 5/144 11 GV 2.
Probably circa 1835. 2 storey
cottages. Stuccoed. Slate
roof. One sash window with
glazing bars each (but lower
ones altered). Right-hand
doors under shallow porches
of ogee form. Nos 13 to 18
(consec.) form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1499002629

21-
MAY -
1976

Warwick
Place (15to
18 consec.)

WARWICK PLACE 1. 5406
(East Side) Nos 15 to 18
(consec.) TQ 1502 NW 5/145
[l GV 2. Probably circa 1835.
A range of 2-storey cottages
under separate (slate) roof-
span from Nos 13 and 14.
Stuccoed. One sash window
with glazing bars each (but
lower ones of Nos 16 and 17
altered). Right-hand doors
with shallow porches of ogee
form. Nos 13 to 18 (consec.)
form a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1499602636

21-
MAY -
1976

Warwick
Place (5 and
6)

WARWICK PLACE 1. 5406
(East Side) Nos 5and 6 TQ
1502 NW 5/141 1l GV 2.
Circa 1820. 3 storeys. Stucco
fronts. One sash window with
glazing bars each (but No 5

21-
MAY -
1976




has probably later bay
window projecting on 1st
floor). Shallow porches of
ogee form at outer ends of
pair. Slate roof. Nos 5to 8
(consec.) form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1496602636

Warwick
Place (7)

WARWICK PLACE 1. 5406
(East Side) No 7 TQ 1502
NW 5/142 1l GV 2. Perhaps
Circa 1820. Not quite
symmetrical. 3 storeys.
Stuccoed. 3 sash windows
with glazing bars (top mid
one blind). Moulded cills
(with decorated metal flower
box frames) and moulded
surrounds. Central porch with
arch of ogee form. Slate roof.
Nos 5 to 8 (consec.) form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1496902637

21-
MAY -
1976

Warwick
Place (8)

WARWICK PLACE 1. 5406
(East Side) No 8 TQ 1502
NW 5/143 Il GV 2. Possibly
circa 1820. 2 storeys.
Stuccoed. Slate roof. One
sash window with glazing
bars. Right-hand porch, of
rectangular form, with posts
in form of bundles of rods,
winged cherubs as corbels
and decorated flat hood. Nos
5to 8 (consec.) form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1498202596

21-
MAY -
1976

Warwick
Road (1to 15
consec)

WARWICK ROAD 1. 5406
(East Side) Nos 1 to 15
(consec.) TQ 1502 NW 5/18
20.6.75. Il GV 2. Early C19. 3
storeys and basement with
area. 2 windows each.
Stuccoed. Cornice and
parapet. Wooden balconies
with canopies on the 1st
floor. (Those at Nos 7, 10
and 13 missing). Round-
headed doorways in moulded
frames up 3 steps with semi-
circular fanlights and 6-panel
moulded doors. Some
glazing bars missing. Nos 1
to 15 (consec.) form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1532402577

20-
JUN-
1975

Warwick
Street (10
and 12)

THIEVES KITCHEN PUBLIC
HOUSE (NOW VINTNERS
PARROT)

WARWICK STREET 1. 5406
(South Side) TQ 1402 NE
3/130 Nos 10 and 12

21-
MAY -
1976




(including TQ 1502 NW
5/130 premises of Thieves
Kitchen at rear) In the above
entry: Nos 10 and 12
(including premises of
Thieves Kitchen at rear) shall
be amended to read: Nos 10,
12, and Thieves Kitchen
Public House --------------------
---------------- WARWICK
STREET 1. 5406 (South
Side) Nos 10 and 12
(including premises of
Thieves Kitchen at rear) TQ
1402 NE 3/130 TQ 1502 NW
5/130 1l GV 2. Probably
about 1835-40. Greek
Revival. Fine fawn-coloured
brickwork. Main frontage to
Warwick Street. 5 sash
windows. The left 3 bays 4-
storey; the right bays 2-
storey (slightly projecting).
Modern shopfronts, also
extending round both return
facades. A 3-light window on
the rounded right-hand
corner to Marine Place (with
pediment over, on 1st floor).
Anthemion decorated
ironwork to 3 windows in left-
hand return facade to
Bedford Row. All windows
have glazing bars except
those in Marine Place (and
on corner), and all have
gauged heads, the 1st floor
windows also having straight
bracketed hoods. Probably
original cornice round ground
floor. Matching cornices
above top floors. Nos 10 and
12 (including Thieves
Kitchen, premises at rear)
form a group with Bedford
Hall Bedford Row. Listing
NGR: TQ1498702609

Warwick
Street (20
and 22)

BUILDING IN LIBRARY PLACE
AT REAR OF NUMBERS 20
AND 22 WARWICK STREET
(STOREHOUSE OF MESSRS
COLIN MOORE)

WARWICK STREET 1. 5406
(South Side) Building in
Library Place at rear of Nos
20 and 22 Warwick Street
(storehouse of Messrs Colin
Moore) TQ 1502 NW 5/33
11.10.49. 1l 2. The entrance
to this house is in Library
Place and 2 shops separate
it from Warwick Street (Nos
20 and 22). But as it is used

11-
OCT-
1949




as a storehouse by Messrs
Colin Moore who occupy 20
and 22 Warwick Street, it is
treated as being in Warwick
Street. It was originally called
Stanfords Cottage but it is
now only called a Store-
house. The shops are of no
interest. The house is early
C19. 2 storeys and attic. 3
windows. Painted bricks with
small cornice modillions.
Mansarded roof. Stuccoed
porch. The south front is of
grey headers with brick
dressings. There is a curved
bay (stuccoed) on each side
of the central window.
Wooden porch with iron
balcony above. 8 panel
moulded door. Glazing bars
intact. Later C19 addition
with slate roof at north-west
end. Listing NGR:
TQ1505102590

Warwick
Street (24
and 26)

WARWICK STREET 1. 5406
(South Side) Nos 24 and 26
TQ 1502 NW 5/34 11 GV 2.
Early C19. 3 storeys. 3
windows in all. Stuccoed.
Small cornice with modillions
below eaves. Slate roof.
Modern shop fronts. Nos 24
to 36 (even) including No
32A, and 36A form a group.
Listing NGR: TQ1506102617

21-
MAY -
1976

Warwick
Street (28)

WARWICK STREET 1. 5406
(South Side) No 28 TQ 1502
NW 5/132 1l GV 2. Probably
early C19. At right angles to
the street, facing a passage
on the east. 3 storeys. Gable
end to Warwick Street is
stuccoed, with one sash
window (with glazing bars on
2nd and 3rd floors). East
side: painted brick. 3 sash
windows, the right-hand one
blind, the others with glazing
bars, but on ground floor only
one (altered) window and
central doorway (with
remains of doorcase). Nos
24 to 36 (even) including No
32A, and No 36A form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1506902621

21-
MAY -
1976

Warwick

WARWICK STREET 1. 5406

21-




Street (30, 32
and 32A)

(South Side) Nos 30, 32 and
32A TQ 1502 NW 5/35 Il GV
2. Early C19. 3 storeys.
Brick. A pair of houses set
back behind deep ground-
floor shop extension and
having its main front turned
away from the street; a
symmetrical design. Single
sash in centre, flanked by 3-
light sash bay windows
(rendered between storeys),
all with glazing bars.
Modillion eaves cornice.
North front: 3 evenly-spaced
sash windows with glazing
bars. One-bay 3-storey
extension to west. Tiled roof.
Nos 24 to 26 (even) including
No 32A, and No 36A form a
group. Listing NGR:
TQ1507502615

MAY -
1976

Warwick
Street (34, 36
and 36A)

WARWICK STREET 1. 5406
(South Side) Nos 34, 36 and
36A TQ 1502 NW 5/133 II
GV 2. 1807. The return
frontage of the west side of
the Steyne. 4 storeys. White
brick. 5 windows in all
(sashes with glazing bars,
the left-hand one blind and 2
windows each to Nos 34 and
36). Decorated ironwork to
1st storey windows. Modern
shopfront to No 36A (which is
the shop below No 1 The
Steyne); Victorian shopfronts
to Nos 36 and 34, with 7
pilasters of pink granite with
fluted collars (2 in return front
to right-hand alley; all but left
2 boxed in). Frieze with
moulded panels and cornice.
1st floor window in alley has
Gothic tracery. Nos 24 to 36
(even) including No 32A, and
No 36A form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1509902628

21-
MAY -
1976

Warwick
Street (45)

The following building shall
be added to the list:
WORTHING WARWICK
STREET TQ 1502 NW 5/229
No 45 - Il House and shop.
c1870 end of terrace
building, altered c1905 by the
addition of Jacobean and
Georgian style features to
the outside and tiled grocers

31-
OCT-
1988




shop to the interior. Stuccoed
with slate roof. 3 storeys and
attics. 1 window. Attic has
curved pediment with
scrolled sides. Parapet with
end ball finials. Moulded
cornice. Upper floors have
giant composite pilasters 3
light canted bays with
pilasters and glazing bars to
the top half of the windows
only. Ground floor has
projecting shop front having
cornice with ovolo moulding
and early C20 gilt lettering
with the words "LEAL &
SON". 3 granite pilasters with
composite type capitals with
female mask, the upper part
fluted. Wide round-headed
shop front with elaborate
keystone and decorated
spandrels. Left side has
decorative panel and arched
doorcase with ovolo
moulding keystone and
scrolled spandrels. Fanlight
and late C20 door. Interior
has mid C19 staircase to
upper floors with stick
balusters (some missing)
mahogany handrail and
column-shaped newel posts.
Reeded architraves to 1st
floor door and 6 panelled
door. Ground floor shop of
c1905 has ceiling divided into
squares by wooden divisions
and RSJ with large brackets.
2 partially fluted pilasters to
rear of shop and cornice with
swags. Right side and rear
wall have early C20 tiling
predominantly tall yellow
panels with blue, grey and
green borders. The top has
grey panels with floral tiled
surround. Listing NGR:
TQ1508602652

Warwick
Street (5)

WARWICK STREET 1. 5406
(North Side) No 5 TQ 1402
NE 3/29 1l 2. Early C19. 3
storeys. 1 window. Stuccoed.
Cornice and parapet. Bow
window of 3 lights with its
own cornice and modillions.
Modern shop front. Listing
NGR: TQ1532602548

21-
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West
Buildings

NOS 1 to 4 (CONSEC.)
CALEDONIAN PLACE

WEST BUILDING 1. 5406
(West Side) TQ 1402 8E
4/10 Nos 1 to 4 (consec.)
Caledonian Place In the
above entry: WEST
BUILDINGS (West Side)
shall be amended to read:
WEST BUILDINGS (East
Side) -------m-mm -
----- WEST BUILDINGS 1.
5406 (West Side) Nos 1 to 4
(consec.) Caledonian Place
TQ 1402 SE 4/1011 GV 2. A
range at right-angles to West
Buildings, with one forecourt.
Early C19. 3 storeys. 3 sash
windows each mostly with
glazing bars. Stuccoed.
Stringcourse above ground
floor. Eaves cornice. Slate
roof. Long and short quoins
to end houses. Fluted
pilasters at the ends of the
inside houses. The ground
floor windows of the latter are
in arcading. Round-headed
doorways with semi-circular
fanlights and 6-panel
moulded doors. No 1 and No
4 have porches with columns
having capitals shaped like
mushrooms. Nos 1 to 4
(consec.) Caledonian Place
form a group. Listing NGR:
TQ1450802381
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West
Buildings
(29)

WEST BUILDINGS 1. 5406
(West Side) No 29 TQ 1402
SW 2/97 11 2. Early C19.
Probably originally a Public
House or similar premises. 2
storeys. Stuccoed. A careful
symmetrical composition. 3
close-set sash windows with
glazing bars (but the centre
one blind). Modern shopfront
below, and left-hand
entrance to through-passage.
Parapet, with coping, over
stringcourse, recessed in
centre. Panel beneath is
recessed to some limits,
which are also in line with the
outer edges of the windows.
Listing NGR: TQ1449202379
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West
Buildings (9,
11, 15 and
15A)

WEST BUILDINGS 1. 5406
(West Side) Nos 9, 11, 15

and 15A TQ 1402 SW 2/9 1l
GV 2. Early C19. 3 storeys
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and basement. 2 windows.
Stuccoed. Curved fronts.
Cornice and parapet. Iron
balconies on 1st floor (part of
that at No 9 missing).
Modern attics added to Nos 9
and 11. Glazing bars intact.
Round-headed doorways in
fluted frames with semi-
circular fanlights. 6 panel
moulded doors at Nos 15
and 15A. Nos 9, 11, 15 and
15A form a group. Listing
NGR: TQ1449502329

West Street
(16 to 26
even)

WEST STREET 1. 5406
(East Side) Nos 16 to 26
(even) TQ 1402 SW 2/94 1
GV 2. Early C19 terrace of
cottages. 2 storeys and attic.
Stuccoed (painted cobbles to
rear). One window to each
(some sashes of Victorian
type, others modern). Right-
hand doors of stable type.
Brick modillion eaves
cornice. Mansard tiled roof.
Nos 14 to 26 (even) form a
group, of which No 14 is local
interest only. Listing NGR:
TQ1441302377
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	Structure Bookmarks
	rectangular bays with 3 windows, with a single window between, all sashes with glazing bars. 2nd and 3rd floor windows are of equal size. Ground floor single window is blind. Door on right of 6 moulded panels within a porch formed of an entablature with hearty dentilled cornice supported by slender pilasters. The steps leading to this have decorative iron railings. There is also a short section of railings along the east part of the frontage. This item is included mainly for group value. Nos 1 to 15 form a 
	Store 20.9.84 II STANHOPE LODGE WAS FIRST LISTED ON 20 SEPTEMBER 1984 AND WAS THEN INCLUDED IN THE TWENTY THIRD LIST FOR THE DISTRICT OF ARUN IN THE PARISH OF CLAPHAM. House and outbuilding, probably originally a stable, now in separate ownership. Stanhope Lodge has an C18 north west wing and early C19 south east wing. Stanhope Store is late C18 or early C19. Stanhope Lodge is of red brick in English bond to north west wing and Flemish bond with blue brick headers to south east with tiled roof and end brick
	storeys, 3 x 6 bays. East end: 3-bay pedimented Tuscan portico on 3-step podium with attached pilasters at gable wall. Blocked central entry, now window, and side-doors, all in moulded architraves, the side-doors having panelled double-doors and fanlights with decorative glazing bars. Plat band breaking forward over doors and with segmental pediment over central door; 3 recesses above. Behind portico, body of church has tall, flat-coped, parapet with dies and, at east end, central cupola, on stepped podium,
	Chapel Road (64) THE WORTHING TABERNACLE The following building shall be added to the list: CHAPEL ROAD 1. 5406 TQ 1402 NE 3/272 No 64 The Worthing Tabernacle II Nonconformist church and church hall. Thought to have been built in 1897 by Lund but rain water heads are dated 1908. Front of snecked rubble with Bath stone dressings. Other elevations are of stock brick with red brick dressings. Slate roof. West front has central gable with cross-shaped saddlestone flanked by octagonal pinnacles dying into 1st fl
	Knapped flint, re-set mid-C19, with stone dressings. Graduated Horsham slate to chancel and porch roofs; wood shingles to spire; 1950s plain-tile roofs to nave and aisles. Plan: C13 5-bay aisled nave with clerestorey and central north and south porches (mid-C19); lower C15 2-bay chancel; C15 west tower with C16 spire. In Early English, Decorated and Perpendicular styles, having: quoins to angles; buttresses with ashlar off-sets; quoined pointed-arched openings, principal ones with hoodmoulds; corbelled rais
	south-east corner has moulded, cusped, architrave and bowls in the form of a trefoil and a quatrefoil. Mid-C19 chancel arch, crown-post roof, pulpit, lectern and some surviving floor tiles. 1885 mosaics above aisle arcades and tower arch depicting the 12 apostles set above the apostles creed and portraits of the patriarchs. Tower: arch carried on attached semi-octagonal columns; pointed-arched vice door; early-C18 Stiles family wall monument comprising aedicule with coat-of-arms over; flanking oval memorial
	Crescent Road OUR LADY OF SION CONVENT CRESCENT ROAD 1. 5406 1/105 (East Side) In the entries for: TQ 1402 NW 1/l051 Oar Lady of Sion Convent TQ 1402 NW 1/1061 Wall of Our Lady of Sion Convent, extending from south-east corner of building, along Crescent Road CRESCENT ROAD (East Side) shall be amended to read: CRESCENT ROAD (West Side) ------------------------------------ CRESCENT ROAD 1. 5406 (East Side) Our Lady of Sion Convent TQ 1402 NW 1/105 II GV 2. Built as one composition with the abutting church, w
	5- light. Slender 3- stage W tower with large, gables, diagonal buttresses rising to belfry stage only, a plain parapet above a corbelled cornice and a tall shingled spire. 2-centered moulded W doorway with detached shafts and carved. The tower has octafoils in roundels and 2-light traceried belfry windows. A sculpted figure of Christ on the S wall is a World War 1 memorial. Clerestory windows visible only from the the interior. INTERIOR: The interior has plastered walls and 3- bay N & S arcades of round pi
	blind arcaded front with a Gothick frame to a clock face in the middle. The porch (bottom stage of the tower) has a flat plastered ceiling with a pattern of moulded ribs. Unusual font with round bowl, the base carved, and deep vertical mouldings to the stern. The 1888 polygonal timber pulpit with traceried panels. 1888 nave benches with shaped ends. The nave paving contains many inscribed slabs. Monuments include a late C15 brass, many C18 and early C19 wall monuments. Early C18 monument to Susan Cook with 
	Grafton Road CHRIST CHURCH 753/3/24 GRAFTON ROAD 11-OCT-49 (East side) Christ Church II* Town church, built in the centre of a square. 1840-43 to the designs of John Elliott of Chichester in lancet style, cost about 4,500 pounds the original design amended following criticism from the Camden Society. Chancel remodelled and refurbished in 1894. Flint with densely-packed galetting of flint flakes; some of the dressings are Caen stone but Ellerary notes that the quoins are experimental artificial stone (24); b
	underpinned in 1907-8 under the supervision of Mr R Singer Hyde. The lean-to aisles are tall and narrow with angle buttresses and double chamfered lancet windows with hoodmoulds. Small paired lancet clerestory windows in square-headed frames. The transepts have large lancets in their W walls and stepped triple lancets in the N and S walls above doorways. The chancel has a 3-light Decorated style traceried E window. The 1894 vestries and organ chamber are built in a style to match the original but have yello
	dado; mosaic sanctuary floor. 1894 choir stalls with open traceried frontals; encaustic tiles to the chancel floor. 1894 polygonal stone pulpit by Jones and Willis of London. The pulpit is on a stone stem with carved stiff-leaf cornices, the sides decorated with blind tracery and marble shafts. Font with a small octagonal bowl decorated with blind quatrefoils on a thick stem with trefoil-headed panels. 1892 organ by J J Binns of Leeds introduced in 1970. Oak panelling in tower porch of 1929. W window by Bel
	Grand Avenue (18) BLACK NEST HALL TQ 1302 WORTHING GRAND AVENUE 753/14/10036 Number 18 Black Nest Hall II Includes: Black Nest Hall, BATH ROAD, WORTHING. Barn, then house. C18 (reportedly 1728), dismantled, re-erected and converted 1926-7 by C P Munn and A Beresford Pite; 1960s addition; restoration and alterations c. 1975. Timber framed with herring-bone brick nogging; gables tile-hung with bands of fishscale tiles; concrete tile roof; brick chimneys. 6-bay barn with rear lean-to and opposing cart-entries,
	28 and 30 SP/457 II 2. House, now two cottages, C16, altered. Stucco over timber frame, some brick and cobble. Plain tile roofs. Two storeys. The doors flank the windows, with that of No 28 under the catslide roof which extends the hip at this end. Modern part-glazed doors. Each cottage has one window per floor, all recent. That to ground floor of No 30 is fixed with glazing bars, the remainder are casements, that to ground floor of No 30 in a segmental-arched surround. One gable chimney. At rear of No 30, 
	curved walls embrace the changing rooms (to the east) and restaurant (to the west) to either side of the bandstand. This has short flank walls crowned by baskets of fruit and flowers and with applied Greek theatrical masks, and is treated as an open temple of oval plan. The low conical roof is supported by slim paired columns of an attenuated Tower of the Winds type. Flat ceiling with decorative plasterwork. A witty and attractive building which forms a foil to the same architects' Pier Pavilion to which it
	Marine Parade THE PIER (INCLUDING In the entry for MARINE II 30-
	THE PIERFOOT PAVILION AND THE PIERHEAD PAVILION) PARADE The Pier TQ 1402 SE 4/270 TQ 1502 SW 6/270 The address shall be amended to read MARINE PARADE TQ 1402 SE 4/270 The Pier (including the Pierfoot Pavilion TQ 1502 SW 6/270 and the Pierhead Pavilion) The description should be amended to read Originally 1860-62. Designed by Robert Rawlinson for J Cliff of Bradford. 960 ft long. The neck was widened from 15 ft to 30 ft in 1887-9 and the pierhead enlarged to 105 ft. Pier consists of 24 spans of longitudinal 
	handsome and largely unaltered example of the Nautical Style. The shape is a rectangle with rounded ends, with terraces wrapped around a small concert hall. Frame construction clad in metal faced Plymax, using almost continuous glazing of the Crittall type. Asphalt terraces and roofing. Four bay hall with simple proscenium arch surmounted by radiating design. From the outside the main effect is strongly horizontal, created by the projecting decks and cornices. Good mahogany doors which retain some frosted g
	sections, paired at ends and to bevelled corner doorway. Listing NGR: TQ1460202437 
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